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A WORD OF INTRODUCTION
For BankMed SAL (formerly Banque de la Méditerranée SAL), the
year 2005 marks the beginning of a new phase driven by the spirit
and determination for development, innovation, and growth.
Through this annual report, BankMed aims at setting the agenda
for the future and at sharing the Banks mission and vision with its
local and international peers, its correspondent banks, as well as
its customers.
The letters by the Chairman and the Executive General Manager
of BankMed express their outlook on the future and describe the
path that the Bank hopes to pursue to achieve its set goals.
This report highlights BankMeds various activities, provides the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors Report for the
year ended December 31, 2005, and outlines the strategic
objectives for 2006 and beyond.
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| BOARD OF DIRECTORS |

| CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD |
MR. MOHAMMED HARIRI
Mr. Hariri is the Chairman -- General Manager of GroupMed SAL (Holding), IRAD
Investment Holding, Al Mal Investment Holding, as well as BankMed and its
banking subsidiaries. He is also Senior Vice-President and General Secretary of
the Board of Directors of Saudi Oger Ltd. He is in charge of investments and
transactions on behalf of Saudi Oger Ltd. and its associates. He is the Chairman
of Oger Telecom and serves on the boards of directors of various companies of
the Saudi Oger Group, including Oger Telekomunikasyon, Turk Telecom and
AVEA Ilepisim Hizmetleri (AVEA) (in Turkey), 3C Telecommunications (in South
Africa), Medgulf Holding SAL, Oger International SA and Entreprise de Travaux
Internationaux (ETI). Mr. Hariri is also a board member of Arab Bank -- Jordan.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

| BOARD OF DIRECTORS |
| MEMBERS OF THE BOARD |
MRS. NAZEK AUDI HARIRI
Mrs. Hariri, the wife of the late Prime Minister, Mr. Rafik Hariri, is a board member of
GroupMed SAL (Holding) and Arab Bank -- Jordan. She is also the President of the
Rafik Hariri Foundation and several other humanitarian, cultural and educational
institutions in the Lebanese Republic and the Gulf region. She is the First Ambassador of
the International Osteoporosis Foundation, as well as President of this Foundation's
206-A Bone Fund.

MR. BAHAA HARIRI
Mr. Hariri was a Board Member of the Bank until he submitted his resignation on April
5, 2006. He is a Board Member of several Lebanese and International companies
engaged in asset management and hotel businesses.

BASILE YARED, ESQ
Mr. Yared is an attorney at law, with law offices in Paris and Beirut. He is a Board
Member of GroupMed SAL (Holding), The Lebanese Company for the Development
and Reconstruction of the Beirut Central District sal (Solidere), Saudi Oger Ltd., Oger
International.

MR. MAROUN ASMAR
Mr. Asmar is the Advisor of the Management Committee at the Bank. He is also the
Chairman -- General Manager of MIB (Holding). He is the former Dean of the Faculty
of Engineering at Saint-Joseph University. Mr. Asmar served as the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Electricité du Liban.

GROUPMED SAL, HOLDING
It is the principal shareholder of the Bank.
GroupMed SAL (Holding) is formerly known as Méditerranée Investors Group (Liban)
SAL Holding.

Annual Report 2005 | 07

CHAIRMANS LETTER
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We, at BankMed SAL, shall always look back to the
year 2005 with anger and sadness, for it was the
year when our beloved Prime Minister Rafik B. Hariri
was brutally assassinated.
On February 14, 2005, Mr. Rafik Hariri was murdered,
together with a number of his team, including Mr.
Basil Fuleihan, the former Minister of Economy and
Trade and member of Parliament.
Since the early 1980s until he assumed his position as
Prime Minister, Mr. Hariri served as the Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Méditerranée Investors
Group SA, the principal shareholder of BankMed SAL,
which he totally acquired by 1983. Between 1992 and
2004, Mr. Hariri served as Prime Minister of Lebanon for
a total of approximately ten years.

This annual report is dedicated to the late
Prime Minister Rafik B. Hariri.
Despite this dramatic event that shook the whole
of Lebanon and appalled the world, and despite
the events that subsequently took place in the
months that followed, Lebanon and its people
continued to pursue their aspiration for political
stability and economic prosperity.

LED BY THE VISION TO BE A LEADING
UNIVERSAL BANK, MANAGEMENT
OUTLINED ITS MISSION FOR THE
FUTURE AND ESTABLISHED A CLEAR
AND ARTICULATE STRATEGY FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF THE BANK.

The countrys traditional resilience and
adaptability were demonstrated once again by
a gradual economic recovery in the second
half of the year and by the optimistic economic
outlook that prevailed. Growth ended on a
positive note, albeit at a limited rate estimated
at less than 1 percent. A substantial inflow of
foreign capital boosted confidence in the
future and pushed the Beirut Stock Exchange to
a record performance.

The banking sector in general, faced the
challenge as it had to bolster confidence in its
soundness and strength. This has been possible
to achieve given the substantial growth and development it has consistently shown since the 1990s, the
high level of liquidity and the generally good quality of the banks assets. 2005 ended with acceptable
growth levels in the overall performance of the banking sector.
For BankMed in particular, there were additional challenges in 2005. Led by the vision to be a leading
universal bank in Lebanon with complementary regional presence, Management outlined its mission for
the future and established a clear and articulate strategy for the development and growth of the Bank.
The broader aim was to develop BankMed to become the bank of choice for customers seeking
excellence in service and the combined advantages of experience, specialized knowledge, and
innovative thinking. BankMed will also continue to contribute to the development and growth of the
national economy and to the welfare of the community.

CHAIRMANS LETTER

Our Strategy
BankMed aims to consolidate its local presence by consistently providing superior services to its
customers; growing returns for its shareholders; and by efficiently optimizing its managerial and
operational processes. We believe that BankMed has the financial strength, the tradition and
experience, the market franchise and the human resource base to pursue and achieve its vision
aggressively and effectively.
Our strategy to this end broadly involves:
o Strengthening our position as one of the leading retail and corporate banking institutions in Lebanon.

One of the main strategic initiatives for 2006 is to consolidate the network of BankMed and its two
subsidiaries in Lebanon, Allied Bank and Saudi Lebanese Bank. This will create a large network of
diversified delivery channels accessible to our entire customer base in all the regions. BankMed's strong
retail banking franchise complements its well-established position among leading players in the corporate
banking sector.
Retail banking will be further strengthened through a more effective deployment of the domestic
branch network, and the continuous development of innovative products and services that respond to
changing customer requirements and market opportunities. Particular emphasis will be placed on
private banking, trade finance, treasury, and investments. Cross-selling opportunities to both our
corporate and retail customers will be fully exploited.
o Improving efficiency by upgrading our operating platform and investing in new technologies.

State-of-the-art information technology and operating systems are being developed to allow quick,
accurate, and timely services to our customers. This is also expected to improve our overall margins and
to promote operational efficiency.
o Pursuing human resource development and training.

THE OUTCOME OF ALL OUR EFFORTS,
We are committed to investing in the skills of our managers
INPUTS, AND INVESTMENTS IS TO
and service personnel, creating continuous learning and
training opportunities for all our staff. We are also actively
ASSURE THE SATISFACTION OF OUR
recruiting new staff with specialized skills in order to
CUSTOMERS.
reinforce key areas of the bank where necessary.
Human resource development will be pursued through
organizational restructuring in order to optimize the
allocation of these resources, create a more efficient working environment, build a customerfocused service model, and deliver an overall internal operations efficiency.

The outcome of all our efforts, inputs, and investments is to assure the satisfaction of our customers. Our
goal is to ensure that every customer who comes to us gets not only the products and services he needs
and expects, but also benefits from valuable guidance that contributes directly to his individual prosperity
and ultimately to the growth of the national economy.
It is our firm conviction that the future, like the present, is a bright and inviting place for BankMed's
customers, employees and shareholders.
On behalf of the Board of Directors and the employees of BankMed, I would like to take this opportunity
to thank H.E. Prime Minister Fuad Siniora for the contributions he made when he assumed his position as
ChairmanGeneral Manager of BankMed during the difficult times in 2005.
I would also like to thank our shareholders, Board of Directors, management and staff for their outstanding
efforts and dedication to ensure a successful performance during 2005. Above all, I would like to thank
our valued customers for their confidence in our institution.

Mohammed Hariri
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A WORD
FROM THE EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER
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BankMed is a bank in transition. We are in the process of thoroughly
examining every function within the organization and re-sizing it to fit our
vision of a full service bank focusing on the exact needs and wants of
our customers. We are taking steps to gain a deeper and more precise
understanding of what drives the satisfaction of our customers. Serving
our customers in new ways that increase their financial prosperity and
enhance their satisfaction is our main objective.
Our services are in the process of being reorganized along business lines
and profit centers, which will strengthen our understanding of customer
needs and will have a positive impact on the financial returns of the Bank.
This knowledge of what drives our business will certainly provide the insight
needed to redesign some of our services, making them more responsive
to our customers' requirements. The focus on bottom line performance
and accountability for results will be at the core of our mission.

BANKMED
REMAINS
COMMITTED
TO ITS TRADITION
OF DELIVERING
QUALITY SERVICES
AND ACHIEVING
OVERALL
EXCELLENCE.

The main business lines that we offer and will continue to develop are
Retail Banking, Corporate Banking, Private Banking, and Treasury. The
products and services in these four business lines will be refined and
streamlined to better meet the needs and expectations of our
customers.
Our four main business lines are backed by highly efficient support
divisions, namely: Internal Audit, Risk Management, Financial Control,
Legal Operations, Administration, Information Technology, and Human
Resources.

During 2006, we are aiming to consolidate the network of all three
commercial banks of our Group, which will drastically improve our
distribution channels across all products and services. This network will
be available to our entire customer base for all types of financial
services and support in both corporate and retail banking.
As we develop and refine our banking products and services, we will continue the tradition of training and
developing our people so that they are continuously learning, growing, contributing, and building their professional
expertise and technical capabilities.
BankMed remains committed to its tradition of delivering quality services and achieving overall excellence. During
the coming year, the Bank will retain its focus on the finalization of its internal reorganization and promoting growth,
development, and innovation across all existing and new business lines.

Nemeh Sabbagh

Executive General Manager

A WORD FROM THE EXECUTIVE GENERAL MANAGER

Financial Highlights
2001

Selected Data *
Total Assets
Total Deposits
Net Loans and Advances
Total Equity
* In Billions

LBP
7,024
5,216
3,438
695

2002

US$
LBP
4.7 7,225
3.5 5,269
2.3 2,772
0.4
746

2003

US$
LBP
4.8 7,628
3.5 5,517
1.8 2,314
0.5
793

US$
5.1
3.7
1.5
0.5

2004

LBP
8,115
6,161
1,827
781

US$
5.4
4.1
1.2
0.5

2005

LBP
8,850
6,145
1,973
1,014

US$
5.9
4.1
1.3
0.7

Total Assets
6

US $ Billions

5

4.7

4.8

2001

2002

5.1

5.4

5.9

4
3
2
1
0

2003

2004

2005

Total Shareholders Equity
700

673

600

US $ Millions

500

461

495

526

518

2003

2004

400
300
200
100
0

2001

2002

2005
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Key Financial Ratios
Key Ratios (%)
Assets Quality

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

5.2

5.4

11.1

3.3

2.2

50.6

56.8

44.2

74.4

80.5

5.3

7.1

8.8

9.5

8.9

Total Capital Ratio (BIS)

24.1

24.3

25.6

25.7

26.7

Liquid Assets to Total Assets
Liquid Assets to Deposits

34.3
46.1

56.2
52.5

63.9
88.4

67.0
88.3

67.8
97.7

Net Doubtful Loans to Total
Net Loans
Loan Loss Provisions to
Doubtful Loans
Loan Loss Provisions to Total
Net Loans

Capital Adequacy
Liquidity

Loan Loss Provisions to Doubtful Loans
90.0
80.0
70.5

70.0
Percentage

60.0
50.0

73.8

74.4 76.3

2003

2004

75.5

80.5

78.0*

56.8

50.6

44.2

40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0
00.0

2001

2002

* 2005 average ratio for the banking sector is an estimation of BankMed

BankMed

Average Banking Sector

2005
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BIS Capital Ratio

30

Percentage

25

24.13

20

25.61

24.29

23.0

20.63

19.04

26.7

25.69

22.0

21.03

15
10
5
0

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

* 2005 average ratio for the banking sector is an estimation of BankMed

BankMed

Average Banking Sector

Other Data

Number of Employees
Number of Branches

2001

993
49

2002

1,018
50

2003

1,026
50

2004

1,027
50

2005
989
51
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GROUPMED IN BRIEF
Who are we?

We are one of Lebanon's leading banking and financial
services groups. Our Group includes in Lebanon two
commercial banks, and an investment bank; in addition to
a fully owned Swiss bank based in Geneva, and a number
of other companies.

What do we stand for?

We represent the quest for excellence in all areas of our
activities. We are committed to providing outstanding
service to our customers through our universal banking
services and professionalism in our dealings with customers
and employees alike. We combine business experience
and innovation to continuously serve the customer with
new and more relevant products and services.

What is the contribution we make?

We are recognized as one of the foremost lenders in high
growth areas of the national economy. We have
pioneered and participated in syndicated loans and have
structured complex project financing transactions. Our
lending policies are a driving force behind some of the
most successful corporate entities in Lebanon and have
served to stimulate the economy in commercial, industrial,
construction and service sectors.
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BANKMED
OUR BUSINESS PROFILE
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Overview
What has become BankMed today was originally established in 1944 as a credit institution. In 1955, it
became a joint stock company and in January 1970, it officially assumed the name of Banque de la
Méditerranée SAL.
In 1981, the late Prime Minister H.E. Mr. Rafik Hariri acquired 73 percent of Méditerranée Investors
Group SA (MIG SA), which held 59 percent of the Bank's shares. In 1982, Mr. Hariri acquired the balance
of MIG's shares and in 1983, the Bank became a wholly owned subsidiary of MIG SA.
In 1995, the Bank acquired a majority stake in Saudi Lebanese Bank SAL and this was followed, in 1996,
by the formation of Méditerranée Investment Bank SAL, a subsidiary specialized in medium and long-term
investment banking activities.
In 2001, BankMed (Suisse) SA in Geneva was added to our Group. This fully owned subsidiary of BankMed
is mainly involved in Private Banking transactions. BankMed (Suisse) also has a representative office in
Brazil.
In 2001, the Bank acquired another commercial bank in
Lebanon, Allied Business Bank SAL, which was then renamed
OVER THE PAST YEARS,
Allied Bank SAL.

BANKMED HAS MAINTAINED ITS
RANKING AS ONE OF THE FIVE
LARGEST BANKS OPERATING
IN LEBANON.

In December 2005, Banque de la Méditerranée launched a rebranding campaign and had its name officially changed to
BankMed SAL, which is owned by GroupMed SAL (Holding),
formerly named Méditerranée Investors Group (Liban) SAL Holding.

During 2006, the networks of BankMed, along with the other two commercial banks of the Group will be
consolidated under the brand name of BankMed.
Over the past years, BankMed has maintained its ranking as one of the five largest banks operating in
Lebanon. As at December 31, 2005, the Bank was ranked as third largest in terms of total capitalization
and fifth largest in terms of total balance sheet.
As at December 31, 2005, BankMed's total assets stood at LPB 8,850 billion (US$ 5.,9 billion) representing
nearly 8 per cent of the total assets of the banking sector in Lebanon, while total shareholders' equity
reached LBP 1,014 billion (US$ 673 million).
BankMed's strong capital base has underpinned its profile as a universal bank offering a large spectrum
of banking services in retail, corporate, investment, and private banking. The Bank has access to a
consolidated network of 51 commercial branches in Lebanon, one branch in Cyprus, in addition to the
Group's investment banking arm in Lebanon and its private banking subsidiary in Switzerland with a
representative office in Brazil.
BankMed has a total customer base of approximately 92,000 customers and employs 989 people.

BANKMEDOUR BUSINESS PROFILE

Business Lines
BankMed provides a full range of banking services and functions as a universal bank across four major
business lines: Retail Banking, Corporate Banking, Private Banking, and Treasury.

Retail Banking
In this very competitive area of the market, BankMed continues to expand its core retail customer base by:
o
o
o

identifying real customer needs and requirements and developing innovative products and services;
harnessing the best service delivery technologies through its distribution channels; and,
delivering quality financial and advisory services through experienced staff and product specialists.

Corporate Banking
Building on its traditionally strong franchise in Corporate Banking, BankMed remains one of the main
players in this sector by:
actively expanding its local and regional corporate banking activities within diversified industries and
economic sectors;
o ensuring that its products and services are competitive, relevant and innovative; and,
o leveraging its expertise in Investment Banking by seeking and developing business opportunities in
Lebanon and the region.
o

Private Banking
BankMed is significantly strengthening its Private Banking capabilities through a number of initiatives, namely:
building up a team of skilled private bankers to offer individuallytailored services to high networth customers;
optimizing the strengths of BankMed and BankMed (Suisse) in order to develop a wider range of
products as well as timely specialized services; and,
o capitalizing on the Group's presence in Europe and Latin America through BankMed (Suisse) in
Switzerland and its representative office in Brazil in order to reach the expatriate Lebanese community.
o
o

Treasury
Our Treasury Division is primarily responsible for managing BankMed's assets, liabilities, and liquidity
requirements. The division has correspondent relationships with major banks and financial institutions
locally, regionally and internationally.
This Division is a major contributor to the Bank's profitability and we intend to strengthen its role by:
increasing our sales and trading capabilities;
focusing on promoting added value services such as hedging solutions to our customers and our
proprietary books;
o marketing various derivatives and structured products; and,
o maintaining our active role in the origination, participation and trading of Debt Capital Markets
transactions for the Republic of Lebanon and other potential issuers.
o
o
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LOOKING AHEAD
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Financial Performance
Consolidated key financials of BankMed, Allied Bank and Saudi Lebanese Bank for the past five years
show a substantial growth in the size of their assets and deposits and a steady buildup in their equity:
o

Total assets grew approximately 26% between 2001 and 2005, at an average annual rate of 6%.

o

Total deposits grew 18% during this same period to exceed US$ 4 billion at the end of 2005. Our market
share over the last five years averaged 7.5% of total customers' deposits of the commercial banks in
Lebanon.

o

Total shareholders' equity stood at US$ 673 million at the end of 2005, representing a 46% increase over
a five-year period.

o

Total Capital Ratio (BIS) has exceeded 25% since 2003 and remains higher than the average ratio for
peer group banks in Lebanon.

Total Deposits
4.2
4.1

4.1

2004

2005

63.9

67.0

67.8

2003

2004

2005

US $ Billions

4.0
3.8
3.7

3.6
3.4

3.5

3.5

2001

2002

3.2
3.0

2003

Liquid Assets to Total Assets
70
60

56.2

Percentage

50
40
30

34.3

20
10
00

2001

2002

LOOKING AHEAD

Customer Services and Products
We believe that our success will depend essentially on our ability to place our customers at the centre of
our focus. Our aim is to create such a culture across all levels of the organization. This challenging exercise
will enable us to satisfy our customers better than anyone else by deepening our understanding of their
needs and wants.
This will require that we raise the bar with regard to customer understanding and customer focus. Therefore,
we intend to outperform ourselves in this respect. That will require a very strong emphasis on and
reinforcement of our customer oriented culture, careful selection, and adequate allocation of qualified
personnel supported by continuous training. Most importantly, the ability to retain our most talented
people with tailored programs will be one of the central concerns of the Human Resources Division.
BankMed upholds its strong code of ethics and corporate values, which emphasize on honesty and
transparency in our dealing with our customers.

Operations and Technology
For more than two decades, BankMed has consistently contributed to the development of Lebanon's
infrastructure and to its economic recovery. Today, the Bank continues to build on its achievements as it
progresses its plans for future growth.
2006 will be a year of consolidation. The consolidation of the networks of BankMed, Allied Bank and Saudi
Lebanese Bank will form homogeneous and diversified distribution channels consisting of 51 commercial
branches in Lebanon, one branch in Cyprus and 63 ATMs located across various regions in Lebanon.
Under a single BankMed brand, we will continue to deliver excellence in each of our chosen service areas.
In line with the ongoing internal reorganization efforts, we are working on establishing a new customerfocused operating model that will be present in every aspect of our business:
All areas that involve customer transactions are in the process of being re-engineered, including
all process flows, skill analysis, capacity plans, organization structures, staffing, etc.
o All branch activities will be service-oriented to customers; while a number of processing functions will be
shifted to central operations.
o Process activities within our central operations will be entirely reviewed and restructured in order to improve
productivity and customer service.
o New functions from branches and other areas of the Bank will be added to the central operations, while
ensuring appropriate spans of control and separation of duties.
o

By continuing to build a powerful set of well-oiled processes, we assure our ability to provide the level of
satisfaction expected by our customers.
Information Technology constitutes as well a strong support to the expansion and restructuring of our
operations. 2005 was a challenging year for our IT Division and milestone projects are under process for 2006
and the years ahead. Our systems in Information Technology and Communication continue to be improved
and developed. We have completed the standardization of the core IT banking systems among the four
banks of the Group for better synchronization of our operations. The consolidation and upgrade of a
centralized data center will be completed in 2006.
Another initiative for the rationalization of our internal processes has been achieved, namely the
implementation of new automated systems for human resources, retail and corporate banking processes.
This will optimize performance and promote operational efficiency. We also enhanced our automated
compliance and anti-money laundering systems in order to improve our operations and compliance
capabilities.
IT Division is also working on an overall revamp of our systems across the entire organization. State-of-the-art
systems are being implemented in order to provide higher levels of customer service and satisfaction.
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Risk Management and Compliance
The key function of our Risk Management Division is to identify, monitor, and manage appropriate risk
levels for our business lines. The various requirements in the risk policy are reviewed periodically and
deviations are reported to the management for remedial action.
The Risk Management Division encompasses a dedicated compliance function with designated officers,
responsible for monitoring the compliance of the bank with Anti Money Laundering (AML) laws and
regulations. Continuous training and independent Audit functions are implemented in order to test the
effectiveness of the Bank's controls and procedures.
Risk Management Division is also responsible for ensuring compliance with Basel II and for setting
standards and monitoring and controlling various types of risks, mainly the Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity
Risk, and Operational Risk.
Credit Risk: The Bank has a documented and detailed Credit Policies and Procedures Manual for
Corporate lending and a Credit Product Program for each of the products marketed by Consumer
Banking. Updates to the Bank's Credit Policies and Procedures are done and reviewed when needed in
order to ensure the process suitability and efficiency.
All corporate proposals and renewals are reviewed by the Risk Management Division with comments and
recommendations presented to the respective Credit Committees.
Liquidity Risk guidelines are set by the ALCO in coordination with Risk Management. The Bank's liquidity
ratios are at comfortable levels owing to the prudent liquidity policy adopted by the Bank in line with the
internal policies and regulatory authorities.
Market Risk is managed at BankMed through the implementation of internal controls pertaining to interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, investment prices, etc. The responsibility for Market Risk management rests
with the Bank's ALCO under the supervision of the Risk Management Division.
Operational Risk management is maintained through a series of internal controls and audits, well-defined
segregation of duties and reporting lines and standards. Internal Audit independently reviews
effectiveness of the Bank's internal controls. Technology plays an active role in mitigating operations risk.

Human Resources
We are fully cognizant of the fact that our staff constitutes our human capital and is as important to us as much
as our customers are. We aim to improve and optimize our resources in order to achieve the level of excellence
we aspire to, thus the Human Resource Division will help develop staff capabilities in operational excellence,
relationship management and responsible contribution to decision making in order to reach better customer
satisfaction.

WE BELIEVE THAT OUR SUCCESS

WILL DEPEND ESSENTIALLY ON OUR
ABILITY TO PLACE OUR CUSTOMERS
AT THE CENTRE OF OUR FOCUS.

Careful recruitment and selection, career development
opportunities, ongoing performance management, clearly defined
corporate values and competitive compensation practices are
some of the ingredients that will contribute to higher staff retention
rates, greater openness to change and a culture of continuous
learning and development.

These efforts are designed to ensure that our Human Capital is well invested and so drives the business towards
higher levels of market performance and customer satisfaction.
Our course of action is clear. Enhanced customer satisfaction, streamlined processes, and investment in
human capital development are key performance goals that we intend to pursue with vision, vigor and
conviction throughout the business.

LOOKING AHEAD

Major Developments
o

The appointment of Mr. Mohammed Hariri as Chairman and Mr. Nemeh Sabbagh as Executive General
Manager brought invaluable expertise and additional strengths to the senior management of the Bank.

o

The merger of Allied Bank into BankMed was completed in May 2006.

o

A major increase in funding through two successful issues of Euro Certificates of Deposit for an amount of
US$170 million and US$ 300 million and a tenor of 5 and 7 years respectively under a US$ 1 billion EuroDeposit Program. Total amount of Euro Certificates of Deposit as at the end of 2005 stood at US$ 720 million.

o

BankMed participated as a Co-Lead Manager with Citigroup and Bank Audi in a Eurobond issue for the
Republic of Lebanon. The total amount of the issue reached US$ 750 million and the transaction was
successfully closed in December 2005.

o

The standardization of the core IT banking systems among all the banks of the Group was completed.

o

A further expansion of the ATM network and strengthening in the security systems of the Bank.

o

Consolidation and centralization of various functions between the Operations Divisions of BankMed,
Allied Bank and Saudi Lebanese Bank.

Ongoing Initiatives
o

The combined strengths of our shareholders and our high capitalization are being fully leveraged to
serve our customers and employees.

o

As part of our strategy to expand products and services to our customers, we have expanded our
Private Banking Division by recruiting new talent that will be leading our sales and business efforts.
We have also established Med Securities, a brokerage arm for BankMed.

o

Operations have been reorganized along business lines with clearly defined profit centers.

o

Existing as well as new talent is being deployed in a way that matches capabilities with job requirements.

o

'Best of Breed' systems in Information Technology and Communication continue to be improved and
developed, namely through the consolidation and upgrading of a centralized data center, and the
enhancement of automated compliance and anti-money laundering systems.

o

The consolidation of the network of affiliated banks within the Group is in progress and is expected to
be finalized during 2006.

o

Fundamental reengineering of operations and business processes is underway in order to optimize
performance and promote efficiency. A number of projects are under preparation such as the
automation of the corporate banking and retail processes.

o

Finalizing the consolidation and centralization of all key functions between the Operations Divisions of
BankMed, Allied Bank and Saudi Lebanese Bank, and creating a common platform for all three banks.

o

The Bank will maintain throughout 2006 its active and leading role in origination, distribution and trading
of Debt Capital Markets transactions. Two new issues for the Republic of Lebanon were successfully
executed in April 2006. The total aggregate size of both issues stood at US$ 3 billion and EUR 475 million,
each of them being denominated in both US$ and Euro. Both deals were Co-Lead Managed by
BankMed along with other local and international banks.

o

In addition to growing the four existing main business lines of the Bank, the Group is planning to expand
its Investment Banking activities, a relatively new business line for the Group with substantial growth
opportunities.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITORS REPORT

Independent Auditor's Report
Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity
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Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors Report
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Independent Auditors Report

AUDITORS REPORT

Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Notes

Non-interest earning compulsory reserves and
obligatory placements
Cash and due from banks
Interest earning deposits with banks
Securities:
- Trading
- Available-for-sale
- Held-to-maturity
Loans and advances to customers
(net of provision for credit losses)

Loans and advances to related parties
Customers' acceptance liability
Accrued interest and other receivables
Other assets
Investment securities
Investment properties
Regulatory blocked funds
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
Goodwill (net of provision for impairment)
Property and equipment
(net of accumulated depreciation)

4.a
4.b
5
6

181,980,932
116,208,982
1,496,760,428

596,203,711
88,004,352
1,245,859,122

6,404,545
2,350,467,696
1,853,542,294

16,236,806
1,779,510,244
1,712,143,088

7
8
9
10
11
12

13
14

1,735,602,937
237,084,056
53,152,020
154,260,278
28,029,233
83,668,445
5,024,625
1,507,500
311,292,653
52,822,608

1,534,199,145
292,514,839
45,607,415
107,236,427
20,199,284
84,105,738
1,356,750
1,507,500
338,451,279
57,523,501

15

181,974,249

193,929,033

Total Assets
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE
SHEET RISKS

24

FIDUCIARY ACCOUNTS

25

Guarantees and standby letters of credit
Documentary and commercial letters of credit
Forward exchange contracts

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

8,849,783,481

8,114,588,234

313,364,068
60,120,418
544,432,284

319,270,524
36,270,545
554,918,940

1,554,268,220

1,005,150,215

* SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

LIABILITIES

Notes

Liabilities:

Due to banks and financial institutions:
- Demand deposits
- Short-term borrowings
- Certificates of deposit
- Long-term borrowings

23,512,757
298,608,449
3,015,000
8,387,895

Acceptances payable
Customers' deposits and credit balances
Deposits from related parties
Accrued interest payable
Certificates of deposit
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities
Provisions for losses and contingencies

Total liabilities

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent:

Capital
Legal reserves
Properties revaluation reserve
General reserve for banking risk
Retained earnings
Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities

Minority interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

333,524,101

20,014,675
164,448,591
78,390,000
9,818,370

272,671,636

9
16
8
17
18

53,152,020
5,719,762,949
424,715,439
71,160,788
1,083,473,581

45,607,415
5,893,765,419
267,399,674
60,516,456
660,037,911

19
20

136,805,533
13,205,000

119,719,907
13,723,183

21

21
22

7,835,799,411

7,333,441,601

530,000,000
23,458,080
3,213,000
40,271,533
99,770,454
282,157,725

530,000,000
21,409,819
3,213,000
39,353,203
83,226,273
71,644,351

978,870,792

748,846,646

35,113,278

32,299,987

1,013,984,070
8,849,783,481

781,146,633
8,114,588,234

* SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Income Statement

Notes
Interest Income:

Loans and advances
Deposits with banks
Securities

141,780,182
50,808,002
276,546,907

Interest Expense:

Customers' deposits and credit balances
Deposits from banks
Certificates of deposit
Derivatives and other

Net interest income

Provision for credit losses less write-back
Loss from write off of loans

Net gain on securities and investments
Commissions, fees and other revenues (net)
Net exchange gains
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets acquired in
satisfaction of debt

Total General Exp. & Depreciations:
Income before income taxes

Income tax provision

Net income
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

484,407,775

(312,713,087)
(17,712,124)
(49,688,010)
(522,132)

(325,544,398)
(7,001,186)
(58,269,886)
(448,420)

(380,635,353)
88,499,738

(391,263,890)
93,143,885

60,401,183

71,657,016

19,894,145
25,444,068
4,097,140

28,637,644

Net financial revenues
Other Income/(Expenses):

23
15
13,15,23

157,441,302
50,961,262
276,005,211

469,135,091

(24,823,651)
(3,274,904)

Net interest income after provision for credit losses

Salaries and related charges
General operating expenses
Depreciation expense
Other (expense)/income

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

(21,264,271)
(222,598)
21,192,772
21,736,871
3,732,819
(143,910)

138,474,180

118,175,568

(48,610,052)
(41,285,738)
(12,457,423)
(7,120,496)

(50,841,867)
(43,102,716)
(13,623,472)
3,491,525

(109,473,709)
29,000,471

(104,076,530)
14,099,038

21,766,014

7,810,236

(7,234,457)

19,529,474
2,236,540

21,766,014

(6,288,802)

6,594,296
1,215,940

7,810,236

* SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31,
Notes
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income
21,766,014
7,810,236
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and provision for impairment
19,886,026 13,623,472
Amortization of premium on forward deals
- (3,702,823)
Provision for credit losses (net of write back)
28,098,555 21,486,869
Effect of foreign currencies exchange difference on a loan to an investee
(59,057)
118,341
Amortization of commission and discount on certificates of deposits
2,125,575
768,825
Gain on securitie
(16,529,954) (27,306,067)
Income from associates
(1,718,724)
(925,178)
Provisions for losses and contingencies
545,275
1,399,392
Accretion of securities discounts
(1,012,815) (3,546,066)
Gain on sale of property and equipment
(308,108) (2,133,375)
(Gain)/loss on sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
(28,637,644)
143,910
Effect of foreign currencies exchange difference on goodwill
4,700,893 (3,086,840)
Accrued interest and other assets
(54,853,800) (16,255,404)
Accrued interest and other liabilities
26 10,652,055 (27,914,404)
Minority interest
- (2,250,000)

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows in investing activities:

(15,345,709) (41,769,112)

Interest earning deposits with banks
Loans and advance
- Customers
- Related parties
Securities
Investment securities
Investment properties
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
Property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
Goodwill

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:

Deposits:
- Customers
- Related parties
Certificates of deposit
Margins and other liabilities
Due to banks and financial institutions
Dividends paid
Non-interest earning compulsory reserves and obligatory placements

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks  Beginning of year

Cash and due from banks  End of year

(250,901,306) (104,074,581)
26 (272,895,692) 125,205,610
55,430,783 (65,195,455)
26 (438,205,101) (367,376,830)
26 (13,704,336) (1,317,464)
(3,667,875)
26
(500,357)
(155,399)
(1,594,531) (4,077,534)
110,005,838
5,280,792
- (3,021,728)

(816,032,577) (414,732,589)

(174,002,470)
157,315,765
421,310,095
(20,115,718)
60,852,465
414,222,779

611,395,012
31,109,443
(122,828,704)
18,329,917
(17,398,723)
(75,000,000)
4,263,853

28,204,630
88,004,352

(6,630,903)
94,635,255

859,582,916 449,870,798

116,208,982 88,004,352

* SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

530,000,000

Prior periods' adjustments

Balance, January 1, 2004

530,000,000

Total comprehensive income

Allocation of 2004 net income

Dividends

Subtotal

2,048,261
23,458,080

530,000,000

Allocation of 2005 net income

Balance, December 31, 2005

-

-

Total Comprehensive Income

-

-

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities (net)

-

-

21,409,819

-

-

530,000,000

-

21,409,819

-

565,485

-

-

-

20,844,334

-

20,844,334

Net income for year 2005

Comprehensive income for year 2005:

Prior year adjustment

Restated balance, December 31, 2004

-

-

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities (net)

Transitional restatement of opening balances (net)

-

Net income for year 2004

Comprehensive income for year 2004:

530,000,000

LBP'000

LBP'000

Balance, January 1, 2004

Legal
Reserves

Capital

3,213,000

-

-

-

-

3,213,000

-

3,213,000

-

-

-

-

-

3,213,000

-

3,213,000

LBP'000

-

156,935,955

1,290,318

-

-

-

918,330
40,271,533

-

-

-

-

39,353,203

-

39,353,203

210,513,374

210,513,374

-

-

71,644,351

5,899,120

65,745,231

-

-

53,493,917

53,493,917

-

12,251,314

(1,628,726)

13,880,040

(1,628,726)

759,488,039

-

60,088,213

53,493,917

6,594,296

5,899,120

742,947,526

19,529,474

-

19,529,474

-

230,042,848

210,513,374

19,529,474

(18,702)

- 748,846,646

-

-

- (75,000,000)

(6,594,296)

6,594,296

-

6,594,296

- 757,859,313

-

-

LBP'000

Total

16,562,883
- (19,529,474)
99,770,454 282,157,725
- 978,870,792

-

-

-

(18,702)

83,226,273

-

83,226,273

- (75,000,000)

4,738,493

-

-

-

34,614,710 156,935,955

-

34,614,710

LBP'000

Asset
General
Revaluation Reserve for Retained
Surplus Banking Risk Earnings

Change in
Fair Value of
Available- Net Income
for-Sale
Securities
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders Equity

(1,837,918)

793,790,989

LBP'000

Total
Equity

-

60,299,486

52,489,250

7,810,236

6,144,076

775,002,557

232,856,139

211,090,125

21,766,014

(18,702)

35,113,278 1,013,984,070

2,813,291

576,751

2,236,540

-

32,299,987 781,146,633

244,956

32,055,031

(2,250,000) (77,250,000)

-

211,273

(1,004,667)

1,215,940

34,093,758 791,953,071

(209,192)

34,302,950

LBP'000

Minority
Interest

AUDITORS REPORT

Annual Report 2005 | 37

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

1- ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES
BankMed SAL (Formerly Banque de la Méditerranée SAL), is a Lebanese Joint Stock Company, registered
under Number 5261 in the Lebanese Commercial Register on August 13, 1950 and under Number 22 in
the list of banks published by the Central Bank of Lebanon, fully owned by Méditerranée Investors Group,
Liban SAL (the holding company). The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries consist of
conventional commercial and private banking through a network of 51 branches in Lebanon in addition
to a branch in Cyprus and a subsidiary in Switzerland.
The Bank headquarters are located in Beirut.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Lebanese Pounds.

2- ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) that are relevant to the Bank's operations and applicable for accounting
periods beginning on January 1, 2005. The adoption of the new and revised standards and interpretations
has resulted in changes to the Group's presentations and disclosures in the financial statements as
required by the following Standards:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Presentation of Financial Statements (IAS 1)
Business Contributions (IFRS 3)
Property, Plant and Equipment (IAS 16)
Related Party Disclosures (IAS 24)
Consolidated and Stand Alone Financial Statements (IAS 27)
Investment in Associates (IAS 28)
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (IAS 32)
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39)

Furthermore, and as of the date of authorization to issue the accompanying financial statements, the
following standards and interpretations, which relate to the Group's activities, were issued but not yet in effect:

IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective from January 1, 2007)

IFRS 7 supersedes IAS 30 (Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial
Institutions), and some of the disclosures required by IAS 32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation). This standard is effective from January 1, 2007.

IFRIC 4: Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease.

IFRIC 4 requires the determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, in substance a lease
that should be accounted for in accordance with IAS 17 Leases. This interpretation is effective
from January 1, 2006.

IAS 39: (Amendment) The Fair Value Option

This amendment changes the definition of financial instruments classified at fair value through
profit and loss and restricts the ability to designate financial instruments as part of this category.
This amendment is effective from January 1, 2006.

The Bank's management anticipates that the adoption of these standards and interpretations (where
applicable) in the future periods will not have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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3- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. Assets and liabilities are grouped according to their nature and are presented in
an approximate order that reflects their relative liquidity.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for properties
which were revalued, and certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value in line with
International Accounting Standard No. 39 (IAS 39).
The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below:

A| BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements of Bankmed SAL include the financial statements of the Bank as at
December 31, 2005 and companies in which the Bank has a controlling financial interest (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Bank has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Minority
interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination (see below) and the minority's share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary's equity
are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
The consolidated subsidiaries comprise:

Company
Banks:

Percentage of
Direct & Indirect Date of Acquisition
Ownership %

Business Activities

Saudi Lebanese Bank SAL
Méditerranée Investment Bank SAL

75 %
100 %

January 01, 1995
January 24, 1996

Banque de la Méditerranée
Suisse - SA
Allied Bank SAL

Commercial Banking
Medium and
long-term Banking

100 %
August 31, 2001
100 % November 30, 2001

Private Banking
Retail Banking

Al Shua'a SAL
Al Hana SALL
Al Jinan SAL
Al Shams SAL
Centre Méditerranée SAL
Al Hosn Real Estate II SAL
Al Hosn Real Estate III SAL
333 Achrafieh Real Estate SAL

100 %
100 %
100 %
100 %
100 %
100 %
100 %
100 %

December 1, 1995
December 1, 1995
December 1, 1995
December 1, 1995
January 16, 1996
February 27, 2004
February 27, 2004
Year 2003

Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Owns Bank's Premises
Real estate company

Med Bancassurance SAL

100 %

May 20, 2003

Insurance brokerage

Real Estate:

Insurance:
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Méditerranée Investment Bank SAL is a wholly owned subsidiary established on January 24, 1996. This
bank is a medium and long-term investment bank subject to the regulations provided in Decree No. 50
dated July 15,1983, and the Central Bank of Lebanon Decision No. 6101, dated February 8, 1996.
During 2001, the Group acquired 90% of Allied Bank SAL The Group acquired during 2003 the remaining
10% of Allied Bank SAL in accordance with a decision of the Central Council of the Central Bank of
Lebanon on September 3, 2003.
Centre Méditerranée SAL owns a commercial building used as the headquarters of the Group.
Al Hosn Real Estate II SAL and Al Hosn Real Estate III SAL own land that is used for the Group's headquarters
activities.

B| FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in
Currency Units, which is the functional currency of the Bank, and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in the income statement for the year. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the income statement for the
year except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognized directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is also recognized directly in equity.
Cash flows in foreign currencies provided by or used in under the various activities, as included in the
statement of cash flows, are translated into Lebanese Pounds at year-end exchange rates, except for
cash and due from banks balances at the beginning of year which is translated at the prior year closing
exchange rates and the effect of currency fluctuation is disclosed separately, if any.
In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts
and options.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
The financial statements of subsidiaries in foreign currencies are translated at market exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. The amount of the currency of the major foreign subsidiary which
is the Swiss Franc was hedged against the U.S. Dollars by mean of a forward exchange contract and
therefore did not result, from year to year, in cumulative translation adjustments.
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C| PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Properties held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost except for properties acquired prior to 1993, which were revalued at amounts that
approximate the fair value at date of revaluation, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation on revalued properties is charged to the income statement. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized
in the income statement.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and properties
under construction, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method based on the
following annual rates:
Real estate properties
Office improvements and Installations
Furniture and fixture
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Vehicles
Key Money

2-2.5%
9-25%
7.5-25%
10-13%
20%
12-15%
25%

D| INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties, which consist of properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation,
are stated at amounts that approximate their fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

E| BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are
recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups)
that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, which are recognized and measured at fair value less costs to sell.
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognized immediately in the income statement.
The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority's proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.
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F| INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it
is accounted for under IFRS 5 Non current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as
adjusted for post acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any
impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate) are not recognized.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognized immediately in the income statement.
Temporary investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries, which the management intends to dispose of
within one year from the consolidated balance sheet date, are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet at fair value that is equivalent to its net realizable value as determined on the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

G| FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Group's balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Investments are recognized and derecognized on a settlement date basis where the purchase or sale
of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.
At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the expressed intention and ability to
hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured subsequent to initial recognition, at
amortized cost, less any impairment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss
is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the investment's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment losses
are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment's recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the investment, at the date the impairment is reversed, does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as either investments held for
trading or as available-for-sale, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Where
securities are held for trading purposes, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included
in the income statement for the year. For available-for-sale investments, gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity net of related deferred tax, until the security is disposed
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of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
equity is included in the income statement for the year. Impairment losses recognized in the income
statement for equity investments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through
income statement. Impairment losses recognized in the income statement for debt instruments classified
as available-for-sale are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
Debt securities exchanged against securities with longer maturities, with similar risk, and issued by the same
issuer, are not derecognized from financial assets because they do not meet the conditions for derecognition.
Premiums and discounts derived from the exchange of said securities are deferred to be amortized as a
yield enhancement on a time proportionate basis, over the period of the extended maturities.
Accretion of discounts and amortization of premium representing a yield adjustment are accounted for in
the consolidated income statement as an adjustment to interest income using the straight-line method,
which leads to results that approximate the results derived from using the effective interest method.
Cost of exercise of the put option related to the redemption right of debt securities is netted from the
underlying cost of the related securities.
For investments traded in organized financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to stock
exchange quoted average market prices.
For investments where there is no quoted price, a reasonable estimate of the fair value is determined by
reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same, the present
value of expected cash flows, or the underlying net assets of the investment.
o

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

o

Financial liabilities and equity

o

Bank borrowings

o

o

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
Interest-bearing bank loans are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign currency forward contracts) to
hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments and
forecasted transactions.
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The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies, which provide written principles on
the use of financial derivatives consistent with the Group's risk management strategy. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recognized directly in equity and the ineffective portion is recognized
immediately in the income statement.
The Group's policy with respect to hedging the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is to designate
it as a cash flow hedge. If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in
the recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognized, the
associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been recognized in equity are included
in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an
asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are recognized in the income statement in the same
period in which the hedged item affects profit or loss.
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are recognized in the income statement as they arise.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognized in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognized
in equity is transferred to the income statement for the year.
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract
and the host contract is not carried at fair value with unrealized gains or losses reported in profit or loss.

H| EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES
Contributions paid regularly by the Bank to the Lebanese Social Security National Fund in respect of
employees' end-of-service indemnities are computed on the basis of 8.5 percent of the actual
employees' earnings. However, upon completion of twenty years of service or upon termination of
employment, and for those employees wishing to settle their accounts with the Fund, the related
indemnities are computed on the basis of the last salary paid times the number of years of service, the
difference between such amounts due and amounts already paid are settled to the Fund at that time.
The Bank follows the policy of accruing for the above mentioned differences on a current basis.
The Group has also provided for end-of-service indemnities for employees not registered in the National
Social Security Fund.

I| LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans and advances are disclosed net of unearned interest and after provision for bad debts. Doubtful
and litigious loans are carried on a cash basis because of doubt and the probability of non-collection of
principal and/or interest.
The provisions for bad debts are set up against specific accounts to offset the losses that may result
therefrom, determined on the basis of an assessment of credit risks which is updated regularly. This credit
loss assessment is made based on objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is estimated
based on the difference between the asset carrying value and the present value of future anticipated
cash flows, taking into consideration the liquidating value of the guarantee in hand.
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J| NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the
assets' previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

K| GOODWILL
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognized at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.
On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under Investments
in Associates above.
Goodwill was being amortized following the straight-line method over a period of 10 years. Starting 2004,
goodwill is no longer subject to amortization. Instead, it is tested for impairment at least once per year.
Any impairment loss recognized is charged to expense in the consolidated income statement and is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

L| IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
At each balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment
provision required, if any.
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of:
o

Fair value that reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date, less cost to sell, if any. To determine
fair value the Group adopts the market comparability approach using as indicators the current prices
for similar assets in the same location and condition.

o

Value in use: the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life, only applicable to assets with cash
generation units.

In this connection, the recoverable amount of the Group's owned properties and of properties acquired
in satisfaction of debts, held for sale and intended to be disposed of within a regulatory stipulated
period, is the estimated market value, as determined by real estate appraisers on the basis of market
compatibility by comparing with similar transactions in the same geographical area and on the basis of
the expected value of a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.
The impairment loss is charged to income.
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M| FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS
All fiduciary deposits are held on a non-discretionary basis and related risks and rewards belong to the
account holders. Accordingly, they are reflected as off-balance sheet accounts.

N| PROPERTIES EXCHANGED FOR NOTES PAYABLE
Property acquired against notes payable, where no interest rate is stated, are accounted for at the
present value of the notes determined by discounting all future payments using an imputed interest rate.
The difference between the face amount of the notes and their present value is accounted for as a
discount and amortized over the life of the notes based on the effective interest method.

O| FEES PAID IN CONNECTION WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fees paid in connection with financial instruments are considered an integral part of the effective yield
on the resulting financial liability, and are accounted for on a basis that reflects the effective yield of the
instrument. When the financial instrument has a medium and/or long-term maturity, the fee is deferred
and amortized over the life of the instrument, and the amortization cost represents an adjustment to the
stated interest rate on the financial instrument in arriving at the effective yield.

P| PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Q| OFFSETTING
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and when the Group intends to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

R| TRADE AND SETTLEMENT DATE ACCOUNTING
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settlement date, i.e. the
date that the entity receives or delivers the assets. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

S| REVENUE AND EXPENSE RECOGNITION
Interest income and expense are recognized in the consolidated income statement on the accrual basis
and include amortized premiums and discounts, except for interest on classified debts for which interest
is deferred as unearned income until actual realization of the interest. Fees and commissions from
banking services are recognized when contractually earned except for commissions and fees earned on
the loan book, which are considered as a yield enhancement reflected under interest income in the
income statement. Dividend income is recognized when declared.

T| REALIZED GAIN/LOSS ON SECURITIES
Realized gains or losses on securities are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying value at the date of sale taking into consideration unamortized premium/discounts and
other adjustments to the initial cost value.
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U| USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of financial assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the resultant provisions and changes in fair value for the year. In particular, considerable judgment
by management is required in the estimation of projected cash flows related to classified debts and
other provisions set up based on management estimates.
Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of
judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management's estimates resulting in future
changes in such provisions.

V| INCOME TAX
Taxation is provided for in accordance with the Lebanese and Swiss income tax law and regulations. The
tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for income tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the consolidated
balance sheet date. Provision for income tax is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet net of taxes
previously settled in the form of withholding tax.
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
In connection with the above, starting from the year 2005 and with retroactive adjustment for the year
2004, the Group reduced the change in fair value of the available-for-sale securities under equity, to
account for the deferred tax reflected under liabilities
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4- CASH AND BANK ACCOUNTS
4 - a NON-INTEREST EARNING COMPULSORY RESERVES AND OBLIGATORY PLACEMENTS
This caption is composed of the following:

December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

Cash compulsory reserves at the Central Bank of Lebanon
Non-interest earning certificates of deposit issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon

181,980,932

216,052,274

-

380,151,437

181,980,932 596,203,711

Banking laws and regulations in Lebanon require banks to maintain cash compulsory reserves on
customers' deposits in Lebanese Pounds with the Central Bank of Lebanon on the basis of 25% and 15%
of the weekly average demand deposits and term deposits respectively. In this connection, cash
compulsory reserves in the amount of approximately LBP 181.98 billion were maintained in the current
accounts with the Central Bank at December 31, 2005 (LBP 216.050 billion as at December 31, 2004).
Non-interest earning certificates of deposit in the amount of LBP 380.15 billion as at December 31, 2004,
and which matured in 2005, represent certificates of deposit subscribed by the Group during the year
2003 and which met total obligatory investment requirements of the Central Bank of Lebanon of
LBP 380 billion, computed on the basis of 10% of total customers' deposits outstanding as at October 31,
2002.
Non-interest earning certificates of deposit as at December 31, 2004 were composed of and matured
as follows:

Maturity Date
January 2005
February 2005
March 2005
June 2005
July 2005
Counter value in LBP' 000

December 31
Face Value Notional Discounted Value
USD
USD
50,434,678
50,434,678
50,434,678
50,434,678
50,434,711

50,285,313
50,022,956
49,913,242
49,241,534
48,990,925

252,173,423

248,453,970

380,151,437

374,544,359
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4 - b CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
This caption is composed of the following non-interest earning cash balances:

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

Cash on hand
Current accounts with Central Bank of Lebanon
Demand deposits with banks
Checks in process of clearing

32,600,122
8,664,921
38,675,760
36,268,179

31,969,497
5,308,756
28,073,645
22,652,454

116,208,982

88,004,352

Cash and due from banks as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are segregated as follows in terms of
Lebanese Pounds and foreign currency (F/Cy) base accounts and resident and nonresident:

Resident
Non-resident

Resident
Non-resident

December 31, 2005
LBP
F/Cv
Total
LBP'000 C/V LBP'000
LBP'000

17,195,357
-

17,195,357

71,226,582
27,787,043

88,421,939
27,787,043

99,013,625 116,208,982

December 31, 2004
LBP
F/Cv
Total
LBP'000 C/V LBP'000
LBP'000

14,019,941
-

14,019,941

48,801,249
25,183,162

62,821,190
25,183,162

73,984,411

88,004,352

5- INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS WITH BANKS
This section is composed of the following:

Time deposits with the Central Bank of Lebanon
Call and term deposits with banks

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

911,133,000
585,627,428

827,654,000
418,205,122

1,496,760,428 1,245,859,122
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Interest earning deposits with banks are segregated as follows in terms of Lebanese Pounds and foreign
currency (F/Cy) base accounts and resident and non-resident banks:

December 31, 2005
LBP
F/Cv
Total
LBP'000 C/V LBP'000
LBP'000

Resident
Non-resident

7,500,000 1,021,228,880 1,028,728,880
- 468,031,548 468,031,548

7,500,000 1,489,260,428 1,496,760,428
December 31, 2004
LBP
F/Cv
Total
LBP'000 C/V LBP'000
LBP'000

Resident
Non-resident

36,900,000
-

801,498,420
407,460,702

838,398,420
407,460,702

36,900,000 1,208,959,122 1,245,859,122

Interest earning deposits with banks outstanding as at December 31, 2005 mature in the subsequent
period as follows with related weighted average interest rate:

Period
1st quarter 2006
2nd half 2006
Year 2007
Year 2008
Year 2009
Year 2010
Year 2016
Year 2017

LBP
LBP'000

Weighted
Average
Interest
F/Cv
% C/V LBP'000

7,500,000

1,489,260,428

3,000,000
4,500,000

5.22
5.49

1,189,878,739
13,245,754
213,474,435
7,839,000
54,270,000
10,552,500
-

Interest
%

Weighted
Average
Total
Interest
LBP'000
%

4.15 1,189,878,739
3.51
13,245,754
5.59 213,474,435
5.43
7,839,000
5.05
54,270,000
5.89
10,552,500
3,000,000
4,500,000

1,496,760,428

4.15
3.51
5.59
5.43
5.05
5.89
5.22
5.49

Interest earning deposits with banks outstanding as at December 31, 2004 mature in the subsequent
period as follows with related weighted average interest rate:

Period

LBP
LBP'000

Weighted
Average
Interest
F/Cv
% C/V LBP'000

36,900,000

1,208,959,122

1st quarter 2005 33,900,000
1st quarter 2005
2nd half 2005
Year 2006
Year 2007
Year 2008
Year 2009
Year 2016
3,000,000

3.73
5.11

893,137,872
39,647,250
3,015,000
1,507,500
217,381,500
31,657,500
22,612,500
-

Interest
%
3.46
2.85
8.25
3.75
3.46
4.26
4.75
-

Weighted
Average
Total
Interest
LBP'000
%

927,037,872
39,647,250
3,015,000
1,507,500
217,381,500
31,657,500
22,612,500
3,000,000

1,245,859,122

3.47
2.85
8.25
3.75
3.46
4.26
4.75
5.11
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Accrued interest receivable on interest earning deposits with banks amounted to LBP 5.42 billion as at
December 31, 2005 (LBP4.46 billion as at December 31, 2004) and is reflected under "Accrued interest
and other receivables" (Note 10).
Effective January 2002, banks are required to maintain at the Central Bank of Lebanon mandatory
foreign currency interest earning deposits to the extent of 15% of their total foreign currency customers'
deposit base, certificates of deposit and borrowings from non-resident banks and financial institutions. In
this connection, term deposits aggregating approximately LBP 911.13 billion were maintained with the
Central Bank of Lebanon as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 793.61 billion as at December 31, 2004),
representing mainly the maturities of the years 2006, 2007 and 2009 (2005, 2007 and 2009 for year 2004).

6- SECURITIES
This caption consists of the following:

December 31, 2005

Lebanese Government and
Treasury Bills Other Securities
Trading
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity

LBP'000

519,480,168
252,915,608

LBP'000

Total

LBP'000

6,404,545
6,404,545
1,830,987,528 2,350,467,696
1,600,626,686 1,853,542,294

772,395,776 3,438,018,759 4,210,414,535
December 31, 2004

Lebanese Government and
Treasury Bills Other Securities
Trading
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity

LBP'000

752,005,181
45,000,028

LBP'000

Total

LBP'000

16,236,806
16,236,806
1,027,505,063 1,779,510,244
1,667,143,060 1,712,143,088

797,005,209 2,710,884,929 3,507,890,138

Ordinary treasury bills, purchased at a discount, are stated in the balance sheet at their par value less
related unearned interest and discounts which amounted to LBP1.01 billion and LBP 4 million, respectively,
as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 8.54 billion and LBP 75 million, respectively as at December 31, 2004).
The coupon treasury bills carry two and three year maturity periods, and related interest is paid
semi-annually. Accrued interest receivable on these bills as at December 31, 2005 amounted to
LBP15.38 billion (LBP 12.03 billion as at December 31, 2004), and is reflected under Accrued interest and
other receivables (Note 10). Coupon treasury bills are stated net of deferred discounts in the amount of
LBP 899 million as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 497 million as at December 31, 2004).
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The above mentioned treasury bills in Lebanese Pounds outstanding at December 31, 2005 carry the
following maturities:

a- Expressed in terms of the original period to the repayment date:

Fair Value
LBP'000

Six months
One year
Two years
Three years
Five years

20,728,012
18,563,268
138,444,918
590,930,042
5,006,554

773,672,794

December 31, 2005
Weighted Average
Nominal Value Discount/Coupon
Coupon Rate
LBP'000
%
21,000,000
19,196,010
130,505,050
597,817,210
5,000,000

773,518,270

7.00
6.72
8.10
9.08
11.30

b- Expressed in terms of the remaining period to the repayment date:
Carrying
Value
Available-for-Sale
1st quarter 2006
2nd quarter 2006
2nd half 2006
Year 2007
Year 2008
Year 2010

Held-to-Maturity

1st quarter 2006
2nd quarter 2006
Year 2007
Year 2008

LBP'000

Market
Change in Weighted Average Interest Rates
Fair Value Discount/Coupon Applicable to the
Rate
Respective Period
LBP'000 LBP'000
%
%

Fair
Value

38,549,344 38,699,165
12,761,026 12,825,281
70,058,717 70,292,478
265,058,649 265,600,020
127,168,095 127,056,670
5,096,814
5,006,554

149,821
64,255
233,761
541,371
(111,425)
(90,260)

7.13
7.13
8.40
8.50
9.19
11.30

3.73
5.77
7.69
8.04
8.93
10.46

13,500,031 14,510,119 1,010,088
2,999,907
3,214,314
214,407
33,981,386 35,221,032 1,239,646
202,434,284 201,247,161 (1,187,123)

7.83
7.76
8.19
9.33

8.00
7.85
7.81
9.39

518,692,645 519,480,168

252,915,608 254,192,626
771,608,253 773,672,794

787,523

1,277,018
2,064,541

The available-for-sale coupon treasury bills are stated at fair value. The change in fair value in the
amount of LBP 787 million as at December 31, 2005 (LBP145 million as at December 31, 2004) is reflected
under equity net of deferred liability in the amount of LBP118 million as at December 31, 2005
(LBP 22 million in 2004).
Treasury bills are considered as quasi-cash items for the purpose of computing the liquidity ratio in
Lebanese Pounds. These treasury bills can be liquidated prior to redemption date with the Central Bank
of Lebanon at current discount rates. Customers' deposits in Lebanese Pounds, which carry short-term
maturities, are mainly invested in treasury bills.
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The Government and other securities, which are mainly denominated in foreign currencies, are classified
as follows:

Trading:

Equity securities
Lebanese Government Eurobonds
Certificate of deposit issued by a Lebanese bank

Available-for-Sale:

Equity securities held at fair market value
Equity securities held at cost
Lebanese Government Eurobonds
Certificates of deposit issued by a Lebanese bank
Debt securities issued by Lebanese quoted companies
Cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon
Central Bank of Lebanon Euro certificates of deposit

Held-to-Maturity:

Debt securities issued by foreign banks
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank
Lebanese Government Eurobonds
Central Bank of Lebanon Euro certificates of deposits
Certificates of deposit issued by Lebanese commercial banks

December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000
3,626,488
1,264,904
1,513,153

1,287,378
13,430,622
1,518,806

6,404,545

16,236,806

433,263,721
23,198,154
1,224,839,539
770,709
6,030,000
4,543,228
13,693,678
12,310,444
112,338,055

193,085,854
21,572,600
772,624,928
7,700,837
791,438
6,030,000
4,543,228
6,156,178
15,000,000
-

1,830,987,528 1,027,505,063

11,887,588
6,023,700
376,106,432 471,334,825
999,595,781 1,183,754,535
205,499,385
7,537,500
6,030,000

1,600,626,686 1,667,143,060
3,438,018,759 2,710,884,929

Annual Report 2005 | 53

Equity securities classified as trading represent securities of quoted Lebanese banks and companies,
held by the Group for trading purposes, stated at fair value prevailing at year-end, and are composed
of the following:

Byblos Bank S.A.L. C shares
Byblos Bank S.A.L. B shares
Solidere A Shares
Ciment Libanais S.A.L. shares
Eternit shares
GB One shares
Counter Value of USD in LBP'000
Byblos Priority shares B and C
Total in LBP'000

Carrying Change in
Cost Fair Value
USD
USD

2005

December 31,
2004

Fair Value
USD

Fair Value
USD

1,506,594
2,271,190
LBP'000

44,731
67,432
LBP'000

1,551,325
2,338,622
LBP'000

853,983
1,287,378
LBP'000

908,851

3,626,488

1,287,378

515,906
373,241
136,193
242,963
189,791
48,500

446,447

2,717,637

(78,986)
66,429
82,822
170,520
(189,791)
(6,263)

841,419

436,920
439,670
219,015
413,483
42,237

1,287,866

283,258
285,041
100,493
153,908
31,283

-

The Group acquired during 2005 371,437 Byblos Priority shares of par value of LBP1,200 each. These
shares earn an annual interest of 4% of par value on a non-cumulative basis from the net nonconsolidated income after the distributions to preferred shares for a period of five years beginning the
date of issue and starting net income of the year 2005.
Dividends received during year 2005 and 2004 on the above mentioned equity securities is reflected
under Net gain from securities and investments in the consolidated income statement.
Lebanese Government Eurobonds as at December 31, 2005 classified as trading are stated at fair value
and mature as follows:

Maturity

Par Value Carrying Cost
Euro
Euro
May 2009
685,000
685,000
Total Counter value of Euro in LBP 1,222,129
1,222,129

Fair Value
Euro
708,975
1,264,904

Change in
Fair Value Coupon Rate
Euro
%
23,975
7.250
42,775

The change in fair value on Lebanese Government Eurobonds classified as trading in the amount of
LBP 43 million is recorded under Net gain on securities and investments (LBP 55 million in 2004).
The certificate of deposit issued by a Lebanese bank in U.S. Dollars and classified as trading as at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 matures in January 2007 and earns interest at the rate of 6.875 % per
annum. In this connection accrued interest receivable amounted to LBP 43.2 million as at December
31, 2005 (LBP 44.9 million as at December 31, 2004) and is reflected under Accrued and other
receivables (Note 10).
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Available-for-sale equity securities comprise are the following:

Number
of Shares
Equity Securities Held at Fair Value

Solidere SAL
Société Financière du Liban
Kafalat
Berytech
Metropolitan Club
Arab Life Insurance Company
Tower Club
Institut National de Garantie
des Dépôts (net of amortization)

December 31,
2005
2004
Carrying
Change in
Cost Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000

15,888,628 121,350,483 430,658,879 309,308,396 191,558,537
26,800
350,260 1,005,000
654,740
350,260
4,500
450,000
900,000
450,000
450,000
700
105,000
105,000
105,000
1
33,000
(33,000)
33,000
5,523,000
577,086
594,842
17,756
577,086
1
4,756
(4,756)
11,971
102

-

Nº of Shares
Equity Securities Held at Cost

Banque de l'Habitat
Banque Nationale pour le Dévelopment
Industriel et Touristique
Compagnie Générale du Levant
Union Nationale
Société Fonciére du Liban
Faraya Mzaar
Coopérative de Presse
Bank of Beirut and the Arab Countries SAL
Société Méditerranée des Grands Hotels SAL
CIL
Ciment Libanais
BLOM Bank SAL - GDR
Banque Audi SAL - GDR
Byblos Bank SAL
Fransabank SAL
Others

-

-

-

122,870,585 433,263,721 310,393,136 193,085,854
December 31,
2005
2004
Amount Nº of Shares
Amount
LBP'000
LBP'000

624,800

5,027,984

624,800

5,027,984

5,500
630
725,814
1,719
595,298
165
33,512,220
6,510
5,194,402
5,867
4,889
18,887
24,732
-

507
151
103,681
517
258,741
9,075
900,117
2,336,625
14,095,011
212,268
136,348
32,726
83,888
515

5,500
630
725,814
1,719
583,152
165
3,199,665
33,512,220
6,510
5,194,402
5,867
4,889
18,887
24,732
-

507
151
103,681
517
246,482
9,075
7,235,242
900,117
2,336,625
5,246,475
212,268
136,348
32,726
83,888
514

23,198,154

21,572,600

The Bank of Beirut and the Arab Countries SAL shares were acquired during the first half of 2002 and
represent 3,199,665 shares acquired at the rate of US D1.5 per share, representing a minority equity stake
of approximately 5% in the bank. During the first half of the year 2005, the Group disposed of its
investment in Bank of Beirut and the Arab Countries SAL that was classified as available-for-sale and
realized a gain of LBP 2.8 billion recorded under Net gain from securities and investments in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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The shares in Société Méditerranée des Grands Hotels SAL as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 consist
of 33,500,354 shares acquired in 2003 at LBP 25 per share and 11,866 shares acquired in 2004 through an
exchange transaction with Lebanon Holding Fund.
The shares in Fransabank SAL and Byblos Bank SAL and the Global Depositary Receipts issued by Audi
Bank SAL and BLOM Bank SAL were acquired in an exchange transaction with Lebanon Holding Fund in
March 2004 whereby Lebanon Holding Fund repurchased its shares from the Group in exchange of the
above mentioned securities.
The change in fair value in the amount of LBP 310 billion as at December 31, 2005 is recorded under
equity net of deferred liability in the amount of LBP47 billion.
The available-for-sale Lebanese Government Eurobonds as at December 31, 2005 are stated at fair
value and are broken down by maturity as follows:

Maturity
April 2006
May 2006
June 2006
August 2006
February 2007
October 2007
March 2008
June 2008
August 2008
October 2009
November 2009
December 2009
March 2010
November 2010
May 2011
September 2012
June 2013
January 2016
May 2016

October 2006
May 2009

Counter value in LBP

Par Value Carrying Cost
USD
USD

Fair Value
USD

125,175,000 126,823,160 126,630,785
13,663,000 13,879,528 13,859,473
3,000,000
3,059,063
3,082,500
48,015,000 49,152,998 49,185,606
34,000,000 34,134,644 34,000,000
64,985,000 67,186,387 67,137,954
17,500,000 17,544,297 17,552,500
495,000
493,716
502,118
153,066,000 164,250,121 165,216,378
49,600,000 54,368,530 55,118,000
12,000,000 12,001,996 12,495,000
23,000,000 23,012,194 23,115,000
63,790,000 64,442,374 64,188,688
50,000,000 50,307,292 50,437,500
53,610,000 54,510,314 55,419,338
16,600,000 16,921,593 16,973,500
12,460,000 12,718,773 13,262,173
13,975,000 13,888,659 14,586,405
3,277,000
3,749,011
4,088,058

758,211,000 782,444,650 786,850,976
Euro

6,981,000
14,015,000

20,996,000

Euro

7,082,358
14,121,527

21,203,885

Euro

7,164,251
14,505,523

Change in
Fair Value Coupon Rate
USD
%
(192,375)
(20,055)
23,437
32,608
(134,644)
(48,433)
8,203
8,402
966,257
749,470
493,004
102,806
(253,686)
130,208
909,024
51,907
543,400
697,746
339,047

4,406,326

Euro

81,893
383,996

21,669,774

465,889

LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000
1,180,462,676 1,217,365,797 1,224,839,539

LBP'000
7,473,742

9.875
10.500
10.500
10.500
6.500
8.625
6.375
7.375
10.125
10.250
7.830
7.000
7.125
6.875
7.875
7.750
8.625
8.500
11.625

%

8.875
5.281

The change in fair value of LBP 7.47 billion as at December 31, 2005 is recorded under equity net of
deferred liability in the amount of LBP 1.12 billion (LBP197 billion change in fair value net of deferred
liability LBP 0.3billion as at December 31, 2004).
Certificates of deposit issued by a Lebanese bank in U.S. Dollars and classified as available-for-sale
matured in July 2005 and earned interest at the rate of 9% per annum.
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Debt securities issued by Lebanese quoted companies in U.S. Dollars and classified as available-for-sale
mature in year 2006 and earn interest at the rate of 10% per annum. The fair value of these debt securities
amounted to USD 511,250 as at December 31, 2005 (USD 525,000 as at December 31, 2004) and the
unrealized gain in the amount of USD11,250 as at December 31, 2005 (USD 25,000 as at December 31,
2004) is reflected in a separate caption under equity net of deferred liability in the amount of USD1,688
as at December 31, 2005 (USD 3,750 as at December 31, 2004).
Cumulative preferred shares in U.S. Dollars issued by a Lebanese bank and classified as available-for-sale
represent the value of 51,200,000 class A shares acquired by the Group in 2004 for USD 0.079 per share.
These shares, which expire in year 2011, earn an annual cumulative fixed dividend of 7.5% per annum
and are subject to an early redemption right starting in year 2009. If the issuing bank exercises its early
redemption option, then the Group will be entitled to an early redemption premium equal to 50% of the
annual dividend that would have been owed and due by the issuer to the Group until expiry of the
preferred shares.
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank and classified as available-for-sale consist of the
following:

Type
Class A shares
Class B shares
Counter value of USD in LBP'000

Number of Shares Dividends Par Value
%
USD
182,500
87,500

8.00
7.00

2,007,500
1,006,250

3,013,750
4,543,228

Maturity
Year 2007
Year 2010

Class A shares represent non-callable cumulative convertible preferred shares that are denominated
in U.S. Dollars and are subject to a one-to-one conversion option into the issuer bank's common stock in
year 2007 at no additional cost than the issue price of USD 11 for each preferred share.
Class B shares represent cumulative convertible preferred shares that are denominated in U.S. Dollars
and that are subject to early redemption option on the 5th anniversary (year 2008) for a total
consideration equal to the value of the shares at the issue price, in addition to the accumulated amount
of all fixed dividend payments due and unpaid on the early redemption date plus an early redemption
premium equivalent to 50% of the value of the fixed dividend payment that would have been owned
and due until the end of the term of the shares. These shares carry a one-to-one conversion option into
the issuer bank's common stock in year 2010 at no additional cost than the issue price of USD 11.5 for
each preferred share.
Non-cumulative preferred shares in U.S. Dollars issued by a Lebanese bank and classified as availablefor-sale includes the value of 40,837 perpetual shares acquired by the Group in 2004 for USD100 per
share. These shares earn a non-cumulative annual dividend of 8.5% and are subject to a call option
starting in year 2009 and for each subsequent year thereafter at a price equal to the issue price per
share plus any declared but unpaid dividends. During 2005, the Group acquired 50,000 additional shares
for USD100 per share. These shares earn a non-cumulative annual dividend of maximum 9.5% and
minimum 7.5% and are subject to a call option starting in year 2010.
Dividend income from preferred shares amounted to LBP1.06 billion for the year ended December 31,
2005 recorded under Net gain from securities and investments in the income statement.
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Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and classified as available-for-sale are
denominated in Lebanese Pounds and comprise the following:

Maturity
Year 2008
Year 2010

Par Value Carrying Cost
LBP
LBP

Fair Value Change in Fair Value Coupon Rate
LBP
LBP
%

12,000,000

12,310,444

4,000,000
8,000,000

4,262,300
8,341,723

12,604,023

4,239,296
8,071,148

(23,004)
(270,575)

(293,579)

17.17
11.30

The change in fair value in the amount of LBP 294 million as at December 31, 2005 certificates of deposit
issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon in Lebanese Pounds is reflected under equity net of deferred
liability in the amount of LBP 44 million.
Central Bank Euro certificates of deposit classified as available-for-sale and purchased by the Group in
the year 2005 are denominated in U.S. Dollars and carry the following maturities:

Maturity

Weighted
Change
in
Par Value Put Option Premium Carrying Cost Fair Value Fair Value Average
Coupon
Rate
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
%

March 11, 2008 5,000,000
April 04, 2008
20,000,000
April 06, 2008
12,000,000
April 08, 2008
5,000,000
April 14, 2008
5,000,000
April 15, 2008
16,000,000
April 25, 2015 * 9,330,000 (254,430) 170,815

72,330,000 (254,430) 170,815

The counter value
in LBP'000
109,037,475 (383,553)
* with put option for early redemption in year 2012

5,000,000
20,000,000
12,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000
16,000,000
9,246,385

5,067,786
67,786
20,266,465
266,465
12,160,043
160,043
5,066,752
66,752
5,066,957
66,957
16,214,372
214,372
10,677,065 1,430,680

72,246,385 74,519,440 2,273,055

7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
10.00

257,504 108,911,425 112,338,055 3,426,630

The certificates of deposit maturing on April 25, 2015 classified under available-for-sale and held-tomaturity (see below) are puttable at a price of 91.63 in year 2012. The Group is providing over time for
the difference between the par value and the redemption value in year 2012 by recognizing the
effective yield applicable for the period until 2012. This cost which is expected to increase year by year,
is reflected as an adjustment to the carrying book value.
The change in fair value in the amount of LBP 3.43 billion as at December 31, 2005 is recorded under
equity net of deferred liability in the amount of LBP 0.51 billion.
Debt securities issued by foreign banks and classified as held-to-maturity include structured notes
acquired by the Group during the years 2004 and 2005. These notes comprise the following as at
December 31, 2005:
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Issuer
Rating

Type
USD:

Callable range accrual note
Callable range accrual note

Conditional
Carrying
Maturity Average Coupon %
Cost

AA February 24, 2009
AA August 27, 2009

6.00 2,000,000
5.00 1,996,716

AA

8.63 3,285,937

3,996,716
6,025,049

Counter value of USD in LBP'000

Euro:

Structured Notes - DOCU
Counter value of Euro in LBP'000
Counter value of USD and Euro in LBP'000

January 19, 2006

5,862,539
11,887,588

The callable range accrual notes are subject to early redemption and pay coupon interest that is
indexed to 6-months LIBOR that is fixed daily during the relevant calculation periods. The capital
invested in these notes is guaranteed at maturity.
The certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon and classified as held-to-maturity are
composed of the following as at December 31, 2005:

Maturity
1st quarter 2006
2nd quarter 2006
2nd half 2006

Nominal Amount
LBP'000

Amortized Cost
LBP'000

Average Coupon Rate
%

376,000,000

376,106,432

10.83

14,000,000
183,000,000
179,000,000

14,010,186
183,000,000
179,096,246

9.50
11.03
10.72

The held-to-maturity Lebanese Government Eurobonds as at December 31, 2005 are stated at amortized
cost and are broken down by maturities as follows:

Maturity
April 2006
May 2006
June 2006
August 2006
February 2007
October 2007
March 2008
August 2008
October 2009
March 2010
October 2010
May 2011
September 2012
May 2012

Par Value Amortized Cost
USD
USD

151,400,000
116,697,000
18,350,000
54,700,000
3,000,000
40,303,000
12,500,000
41,000,000
41,378,000
5,000,000
20,000,000
56,500,000
3,000,000
54,750,000

Fair Value
USD

152,789,783 153,160,764
116,933,323 118,375,098
18,680,583 18,854,625
55,927,577 56,033,581
2,984,075
3,000,000
39,832,035 41,638,202
12,531,641 12,537,500
44,264,780 44,254,558
43,473,148 45,981,303
5,081,199
5,031,250
20,172,083 20,175,000
57,498,953 58,406,875
3,019,560
3,067,500
62,130,034 68,300,625

Change in Coupon Rate
Fair Value
USD
%
370,981
1,441,775
174,042
106,004
15,925
1,806,167
5,859
(10,222)
2,508,155
(49,949)
2,917
907,922
47,940
6,170,591

9.875
10.500
10.500
10.500
6.500
8.625
6.375
10.125
7.750
7.125
6.875
7.875
7.750
11.625

371,392
74,330

8.875
7.250

618,578,000
Euro

635,318,774 648,816,881
Euro
Euro

13,498,107
Euro

23,250,000
LBP'000
The counter value in LBP 973,987,358

23,458,341 23,904,063
LBP'000
LBP'000
999,595,781 1,020,739,403

445,722
LBP'000
21,143,622

October 2006
May 2009

18,250,000
5,000,000

18,357,671
5,100,670

18,729,063
5,175,000

%

%
Annual Report 2005 | 59

Central Bank of Lebanon Euro certificates of deposit classified as held-to-maturity and purchased by the
Group during the year 2005 are denominated in U.S. Dollars and carry the following maturities:

Maturity
February 15, 2006
March 9, 2008
March 11, 2008
March 16, 2008
March 17, 2008
March 24, 2008
April 6, 2008
April 14, 2008
April 25, 2015*

Nominal Put Option Carrying Cost
Value
USD
USD
USD

5,400,000
27,000,000
11,000,000
10,000,000
30,000,000
14,500,000
8,250,000
6,073,000
25,000,000

137,223,000

(905,000)

5,400,000
27,000,000
11,000,000
10,000,000
30,000,000
14,500,000
8,250,000
6,073,000
24,095,000

in Average
Fair Value Change
Fair Value Coupon Rate
USD
USD
%

5,212,488
27,360,283
11,147,941
10,120,519
30,401,961
14,694,969
8,360,029
6,154,326
28,609,500

(187,512)
360,283
147,941
120,519
401,961
194,969
110,029
81,326
4,514,500

(905,000) 136,318,000 142,062,016 5,744,016

The counter value
of USD in LBP'000 206,863,673 (1,364,288)
* with put option for early redemption in year 2012

4.13
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
7.50
10.00

205,499,385 214,158,489 8,659,104

The option on the held-to-maturity certificates of deposit maturing on April 25, 2015 to redeem in year
2012, is treated in the same manner as described under available-for-sale certificates of deposit above.
Certificates of deposit issued by Lebanese commercial banks in U.S. Dollars and classified as held-tomaturity as at December 31, 2004 mature in July 2006 and earn interest at the rate of 6.75% per annum.
During 2005, the Group invested an additional USD 1,000,000 in certificates of deposit issued by the same
bank, maturing in September 2008 and earning interest of 6.875% per annum. In this connection,
accrued interest receivable in the amount of LBP 211.1 million as at December 31, 2005
(LBP 187.18 million as at December 31, 2004) is reflected under Accrued interest and other receivables
(Note 10).
Accrued interest receivable on Government Eurobonds and starched notes debt securities amounting
to LBP 57.94 billion as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 49.75 billion as at December 31, 2004), is included under
Accrued interest and other receivables (Note 10).
Accrued interest receivable on the certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon in U.S.
Dollars amounted to LBP 6.16 billion as at December 31, 2005 and is reflected under Accrued interest
and other receivables (LBP Nil as at December 31, 2004) (Note 10).
Accrued interest receivable on the certificates of deposit issued by the Central bank in LBP as at
December 31, 2005 amounted to LBP 61.55 billion (LBP 39.19 billion as at December 31, 2004) and is
reflected under "Accrued interest and other receivables" (Note 10).
Effective January 1, 2005, originated securities as at December 31, 2004 were reclassified under other
classification categories in line with the revisions to IAS 39.
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7- LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
This caption consists of the following:

Ordinary Loans

Loans and overdrafts
Creditors balances in debit
Bills discounted

Restructured Debts

2005
LBP'000

December 31,
2004
LBP'000

1,555,470,639
11,799,011
4,353,898

1,298,451,644
7,467,075
6,511,054

1,571,623,548

1,312,429,773

48,122,267
17,125,190
35,102,659

27,886,311
30,475,045
54,462,069

Special mention loans
Substandard loans (net of unearned interest)
Bad and doubtful debts (net of unearned interest)

Classified Loans

Substandard loans (net of unearned interest)
Bad and doubtful loans (net of unearned interest)
Less: Provision for credit losses
Unearned penalties
Loans and advances to customers

100,350,116

112,823,425

33,734,115
217,721,536
(175,267,460)

61,381,162
233,081,067
(173,423,773)

(12,558,918)

(12,092,509)

76,188,191

1,735,602,937

121,038,456

1,534,199,145

The loans and advances portfolio is allocated by classification of debts and between Lebanese Pounds
and foreign currency base loans as follows:

Regular and unclassified loans and advances
Restructured debts
Substandard loans (net of unearned interest)
Bad and doubtful loans (net of unearned interest)
Provisions
Unearned penalties

Regular and unclassified loans and advances
Restructured debts
Substandard loans (net of unearned interest)
Bad and doubtful loans (net of unearned interest)
Provisions
Unearned penalties

December 31, 2005
F/Cy c/v in
Total
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000

33,434,517
3,300
75,087
31,493,286
(19,556,132)
(12,558,918)

1,538,189,031
100,346,816
33,659,028
186,228,250
(155,711,328)
-

1,571,623,548
100,350,116
33,734,115
217,721,536
(175,267,460)
(12,558,918)

32,891,140 1,702,711,797 1,735,602,937
December 31, 2004
F/Cy c/v in
Total
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000

21,495,996
3,467,395
28,311,250
(18,726,893)
(12,092,509)

1,290,933,777
112,823,425
57,913,767
204,769,817
(154,696,880)
-

1,312,429,773
112,823,425
61,381,162
233,081,067
(173,423,773)
(12,092,509)

22,455,239 1,511,743,906 1,534,199,145
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Loans and overdrafts as at December 31, 2005 include exposures secured by cash collaterals, real estate
mortgages and marketable securities to the extent of approximately LBP 534.4 billion, LBP 482.71 billion and
LBP108.34 billion, respectively (LBP 443.46 billion, LBP 518.14 billion and LBP 121.83 billion respectively in 2004).
The loans and advances portfolio is allocated among the various economic sectors as follows:

Economic Sector

Real estate
Commercial and services
Agriculture and industrial
Other

December 31
2005
2004
33 %
40 %
9%
18 %

100 %

28 %
41 %
8%
23 %

100 %

The loans and advances to customers
portfolio reflects a concentration in the
distribution of loans among debtors and in
specific economic sectors.
Loans and advances as at December 31,
2005 relate to resident debtors to the extent
of 85% of total loans and advances (92%
as at December 31, 2004).

Loans and advances to customers as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are stated net of third parties'
participation to the extent of LBP12.16 billion and LBP 22.61 billion, respectively.
The Group has deferred penalty interest on loans and advances in the amount of LBP 12.56 billion as at
December 31, 2005 (LBP 12.1 billion as at December 31, 2004).
Accrued interest receivable on loans and advances as at December 31, 2005 amounted to
LBP 6.99 billion (LBP 0.74 billion as at December 31, 2004) and is reflected under Accrued Interest and
Other Receivables (Note 10).
Bad and doubtful accounts in the aggregate amount of LBP 302 billion and LBP 30.2 billion were settled
in year 2004 through the acquisition of the Group of real estate properties and temporary acquisition of
a non-consolidated subsidiary, respectively.
Bad and doubtful debts and substandard loans are stated net of unearned interest.
The movement of unearned interest on bad and doubtful debts and substandard loans is summarized
as follows:

YEAR 2005 - UNEARNED INTEREST ON SUBSTANDARD
Doubtful Debts
Loans
LBP'000
LBP'000

Balance, beginning of year
Additions for the year
Write backs
Write-offs
Transfers
Transfer to provision for
non-consolidated subsidiary
Transfer to off-balance sheet
Effect of exchange rate changes
Contractual write-off on
restructured troubled debts
Net balance, end of year

Total Total Year 2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

383,354,748
63,058,296
(8,500,052)
(40,078,188)
6,263,682

28,274,437
7,176,180
(9,587,971)
(1,155,636)
(6,263,682)

411,629,185
70,234,476
(18,088,023)
(41,233,824)
-

427,705,963
87,080,247
(24,782,065)
(64,495,622)
-

(5,056,942)
(25,752,846)
(507,427)

(3,159,313)
(16,737)

(5,056,942)
(28,912,159)
(524,164)

(14,109,427)
230,089

(35,498,345)

(2,663,951)

(38,162,296)

(71,840,444)

372,781,271
337,282,926

15,267,278
12,603,327

388,048,549
349,886,253

411,629,185
339,788,741

The Group has set up specific provisions for bad and doubtful accounts in the amount of approximately
LBP175.27 billion as at December 31, 2005 (LBP173.4 billion as at December 31, 2004).
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The movement of the provision for credit losses is summarized as follows:

2005
LBP'000

2004
LBP'000

Balance, beginning of year
Additions for the year
Transfer from Escrow
Write-backs
Write-offs
Transfer to provision for non-consolidated subsidiary
Transfer to off-balance sheet
Effect of exchange rate charges

188,607,017
35,667,274
1,470,605
(10,843,623)
(10,952,416)
(5,574,223)
(15,797,342)
(375,452)

196,212,447
24,128,698
(2,419,231)
(9,049,614)
(20,329,601)
64,318

Contractual write-off on restructured debts
Net balance, end of year
Escrow Funds
Contractual write-off on restructured debts

(19,976,772)

(30,235,675)

13,099,392
(57,000)

16,343,979
(1,291,548)

182,201,840
162,225,068

13,042,392
175,267,460

188,607,017
158,371,342

15,052,431
173,423,773

Escrow Funds in the amount of USD 8,689,480 as at December 31, 2005, are partially funded from by the
Group to the extent of USD 2 million and the balance is funded by the previous shareholders of
Allied Bank SAL, a wholly owned subsidiary, for the purpose of covering any shortfall in the provision for
doubtful accounts. An amount of USD 3,993,133 out of the Escrow Funds as at December 31, 2005,
became the irrevocable right of the Group as of the year 2002. During 2005, an amount of USD 975,526
was transferred from the Escrow Funds to provisions for credit losses for bad and doubtful loans.
According to Government Decree No. 83 of June 27, 1977, specific provisions set up by banks for bad
and doubtful debts, before the bankruptcy of the related debtors is declared, are considered a
deductible charge for tax purposes, provided the approval of the Banking Control Commission is obtained.
During 2005, special mention accounts in the gross notional amount of LBP 52.49 billion were reported
under restructured loans net of waived loans in the amount of LBP 4.37 billion which was off-set against
unearned interest of bad and doubtful debts. In addition, substandard accounts in the gross notional
amount of LBP 19.79 billion were reported under restructured loans net of waived loans in the amount of
LBP 2.66 billion which was offset against unearned interest on substandard loans. Moreover, bad and
doubtful accounts in the gross notional amount of LBP 86.23 billion were reported under restructured
debts net of waived loans in the amount of LBP 51.1 billion which was off-set against provision and
unearned interest on bad and doubtful loans in the amounts of LBP 20 billion (including LBP 57 million
covered by Escrow Funds) and LBP 31.13 billion, respectively.

8- LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES
This caption comprises the following:

Overdrafts
Long-term loans
Creditors balances in debit
Commercial bills

2005
LBP'000

December 31,
2004
LBP'000

237,084,056

292,514,839

210,994,172
520,298
25,569,586
-

252,907,547
659,908
38,737,841
209,543
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Loans and advances to related parties represent the utilized overdraft facilities extended to the
beneficial owner of the Bank and to companies under common ownership. These loans are substantially
covered by related party deposits that comprise the following:

Demand deposits
Debtors' balances in credit
Time deposits
Time savings

2005
LBP'000

December 31,
2004
LBP'000

424,715,439

267,399,674

152,918,498
2,437,008
263,364,913
5,995,020

55,670,355
2,952,743
197,146,995
11,629,581

Loans and advances to related parties in the amount of LBP 63.7 bil ion were settled during 2004 against the
acquisition by the Group of two real estate companies owning properties adjacent to the Group's headquarters.

9- CUSTOMERS' ACCEPTANCE LIABILITY
This caption represents the liability to the Group of its customers on outstanding drafts and bills of
exchange which have been accepted by the Bank and/or other banks for its account. These
acceptances relate to negotiated deferred payment import letters of credit. The commitments resulting
from these acceptances are stated as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet and for the same amount.

10- ACCRUED INTEREST AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
This caption consists of the following:

Accrued interest receivable:
Lebanese treasury bills
Government Eurobonds and structured notes
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of
Lebanon and other financial institutions
Loans and advances
Deposits with banks
Accrued commissions and other receivables

2005
LBP'000

December 31,
2004
LBP'000

15,383,198
58,252,125

12,029,004
50,574,816

67,961,071
6,985,586
5,415,371
262,927

39,422,939
739,789
4,462,732
7,147

154,260,278

107,236,427

11- OTHER ASSETS
This caption consists of the following:

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges
Change in the fair value of derivatives
Others
Changes in the fair value of derivatives is composed of the following:
Net forward exchange contracts
Net currency options

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

9,159,598
6,536,042
12,333,593

10,780,378
9,418,906

28,029,233

20,199,284

6,720,731
(184,689)
6,536,042

-
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12- INVESTMENT SECURITIES
This caption consists of the following:

% of Ownership/
Nº. of Shares
Associated Companies

Creditcard Services Company
Medfinance Holding Ltd.
Ciment de Sibline SAL

%

2005
LBP'000

2004
LBP'000

40%
100%
23%

7,394,423
1,356,750
40,289,689

5,520,639
1,356,750
26,478,153

13,823,190

30,167,658

13,006,715
4,844,173
2,790,707
162,798

13,006,715
4,844,173
2,731,650
-

Temporary Investment in Non-Consolidated Subsidiary
Share capital and loans to IDARAT Investment SAL
(Holding) and Subsidiaries

Other Investments

Sidem
Light Metal Products SAL
Long-term loan to Light Metal Products SAL
Others

December 31,

72.2%
20%
145,000

49,040,862 33,355,542

13,823,190 30,167,658

20,804,393 20,582,538
83,668,445 84,105,738

The investment in Creditcard Services Company SAL is reflected as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 using
the equity method whereby the Group accounts for its share in the net income of the associate net of
deferred dividend tax. In this connection, the Group recorded its share in the net income of the
associate in the amount of LBP 1.91 billion for the year 2005 (LBP 1.03 billion for the year 2004) by crediting
net gains from securities and investments in the income statement for an amount of LBP 1.72 billion for
the year ended December 31, 2005 (LBP 925 million in 2004) and accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities for an amount of LBP191 million as at December 31, 2005 (LBP103 million as at
December 31, 2004).
During 2005, the Group acquired 7,634,901 additional shares in Ciment de Sibline SAL for a total
consideration of LBP 13.81 billion thus increasing the Group's stake in the equity of the associate to 23%
representing 17,797,818 shares. The Group did not account as at December 31, 2005 for its share in the
net income of the associate for the year ended December 31, 2005, since the accounts of the associate
were not prepared as at the issuance of the Group's financial statements. Management believes that
the share in the associate's net income for the year ended December 31, 2005 is immaterial to the
Group's financial statements as a whole.
The Medfinance Holding Ltd. shares were acquired during 2003 and represent 187,500 shares acquired
at a lump-sum amount of USD 900,000 (LBP 1.4 billion). The Group did not account as at December 31,
2005 for its share in the net income of the associate for the year ended December 31, 2005, since the
accounts of the associate were not prepared as at the issuance of the Group's financial statements.
Management believes that the share in the associate's net income for the year ended December 31,
2005 is immaterial to the Group's financial statements as a whole.
IDARAT Investment SAL (Holding) and Subsidiaries equity stake of 72.2% was acquired by the Group on a
temporary basis in partial satisfaction of debt related to this group and other capitalizable loans granted
to this company and a chain of hotels and restaurants related to it. This investment is reflected at fair
value which approximates its net realizable value as estimated by the Group's management.
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13- ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF DEBTS
Acquisition of assets in satisfaction of debts is approved by the Lebanese banking regulatory authorities.
These assets should be liquidated within two years as from the date of approval given by the Central
Bank of Lebanon to acquire these properties. In the event of default of liquidation, such properties
should be fully provided for over a period of five years, commencing in the last year of the period during
which the assets should have been liquidated. In this connection, the regulatory provision for impairment
set up by the Group as at December 31, 2005 amounted to LBP 10.05 billion (LBP 4.04 billion as at
December 31, 2004).
However, it should be noted that the Central Bank of Lebanon, through its intermediary circular #41
dated November 17, 2003 and its related circulars and amendments, allowed banks to provide for
impairment of assets acquired in satisfaction of debts over an extended period of 20 years provided that
the related debts meet certain criteria enumerated in the above mentioned circular.
The movement of assets acquired in satisfaction of debts was as follows:

Balance -- January 1, 2004
Additions
Disposals

Balance -- December 31, 2004
Additions
Disposals

Balance -- December 31, 2005

Provision
Assets Acquired for Impairment Net Book Value
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000
46,326,015
(2,510,670)
43,815,345
301,586,490
(5,424,702)

(1,561,431)
35,577

342,487,803

(4,036,524)

321,337,928

(10,045,275)

60,218,319
(81,368,194)

(6,028,603)
19,852

300,025,059
(5,389,125)

338,451,279

54,189,716
(81,348,342)

311,292,653

During 2005, the Group sold assets acquired in satisfaction of debt of aggregate cost of USD 52.6 million
for USD 70.66 million to a related party and recognized a gain on sale in the amount of USD18.06 million
reflected under Gain on sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of debts in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The additional provision for impairment in the amount of USD 6.03 billion is recorded under Other
Expense in the consolidated income statements.

14- GOODWILl (NET OF PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSS)
The transactions giving rise to goodwill were mainly the purchase of 100% equity stake in Banque de la
Méditerranée (Suisse) SA with an effective date of August 31, 2001 and 90% of Allied Bank SAL with an
effective date of November 30, 2001. The related goodwill represents mainly the difference between the
acquisition price of the investment in both acquired subsidiaries and the Bank's equity in the related net
assets at the effective dates of the transactions. The Bank's acquisition during 2003 of the remaining 10%
equity stake in Allied Bank SAL resulted in an addition to goodwill of LBP 2.8 billion. In addition, and due
to a court resolution dated March 4, 2004, the Group had to pay an amount of USD 2,653,657 to the previous
owners of Allied Bank SAL. This resulted in a further addition to goodwill in the amount of LBP 3billion.
The goodwill outstanding as of the balance sheet date consists of the following:

Subsidiary's Name
Banque de la Méditerranée (Suisse) SA
Allied Bank SAL
Cumulative effect of exchange rates
changes up to December 31, 2005
Less: Accumulated amortization up
to December 31, 2003

Goodwill (net)

% of Acquired Transaction
Net
Ownership Value Assets Value
% LBP'000
LBP'000
100 86,653,140
100 56,426,242

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000 LBP'000

56,240,341 30,412,799 30,412,799
28,673,294 27,752,948 27,752,948
58,165,747 58,165,747
8,396,406 14,528,009

66,562,153 72,693,756
(13,739,545) (15,170,255)

52,822,608 57,523,501

The change in accumulated amortization is due to exchange rate fluctuation. Effective 2004, goodwill
is subject to impairment testing.
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15- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
This caption comprises the following:

Real estate properties
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Improvements and installations
Key money
Establishment costs
Accumulated depreciation
Allowance for impairment loss on property and equipment
Advance payments on capital expenditures

Net book value

2005
LBP'000

154,763,197
37,032,889
1,062,180
75,212,656
201,799
301,358

268,574,079

(90,046,202)
(1,400,000)
4,846,372

181,974,249

December 31,
2004
LBP'000
155,467,002
35,746,332
1,079,852
72,919,120
202,199
1,435,038

266,849,543

(80,770,328)
7,849,818

193,929,033

Real estate properties include the cost of a building of LBP 15 billion (USD 10,000,000) purchased on
January 4, 1999 in Beirut Central District, which is to be used as headquarters for one of the subsidiaries,
the Saudi Lebanese Bank SAL The Bank has paid USD 2,500,000 on signature of the purchase contract,
and the balance of USD 7,500,000 represents the present value of notes payable within 8 years,
discounted at the rate of 7.25% per annum (the interest rate of the contract). The notes outstanding as
at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 are included under notes payable (Note 19) and are
presented net of related deferred interest which is amortized over the life of the notes.
Real estate properties include LBP 63.7 billion representing the cost of real estate properties owned by two
real estate companies that were acquired by the Group in satisfaction of debts during the year 2004.
The allowance for impairment loss on property and equipment in the amount of LBP1.4 billion set up
during the year 2005 against real estate properties and leasehold improvements is recorded under
other expenses in the consolidated income statement.

16- CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS AND CREDIT BALANCES
This caption comprises the following:

Demand deposits
Time deposits
Saving accounts

2005
LBP'000

282,162,617
1,907,456,166
3,530,144,166

December 31,
2004
LBP'000
272,153,875
1,970,326,694
3,651,284,850

5,719,762,949 5,893,765,419

Customers' deposits include coded accounts stated at LBP 47.8 billion as at December 31, 2005
(LBP 119.9 billion as at December 31, 2004). These accounts are subject to the provisions of Article 3 of
the Banking Secrecy Law dated September 3, 1956. Under the provisions of this Article, the Group's
management, in the normal course of business, cannot reveal the identities of the depositors to third
parties, including its independent auditors.
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Customers' deposits include as at December 31, 2005 deposits of a fiduciary nature in the aggregate of
LBP 231.33 billion (including the equivalent of USD 109,528,797 and Euro 21,700,193) out of which
LBP118 billion placed with the Bank by a related non-resident company and a subsidiary bank
(LBP 243.75 billion as at December 31, 2004, out of which LBP 118 billion placed by a related non-resident
company and a subsidiary bank).
The consolidated average balances of the Group's deposit base (inclusive of related party accounts)
and the related cost of funds over the current year and the last two-years were as follows:

Period/Year
2005
2004
2003

Average Balance Allocation of Deposits
Average Annual
of Deposits
LBP
F/Cy Cost of Funds Cost of Funds all Currencies
LBP'000
%
%
LBP'000
%
6,054,716,733
5,716,867,586
5,067,844,000

21
23
25

79
77
75

312,713,087
325,544,398
325,565,062

5.16
5.69
6.42

Customers deposits and other credit balances are segregated between resident and non-resident to
the extent of 74% and 26% respectively as at December 31, 2005 (80% and 20% respectively as at
December 31, 2004).
Accrued interest payable on customers' deposits amounted to LBP 49 billion as at December 31, 2005
(LBP 45 billion as at December 31, 2004) and is reflected under "Accrued interest payable" (Note 17).
Deposits outstanding as at December 31, 2005 (inclusive of related party accounts) carry the following
maturities:

Less than 3 months
From 3 to 6 months
From 6 to 12 months
More than 12 months

Deposits In LBP Deposits in F/Cy
LBP'Million C/V in LBP'Million
1,091,581
85,360
17,602
1,188

1,195,731

3,754,513
352,101
239,657
602,476

4,948,747

Total Deposits
LBP'Million
4,846,094
437,461
257,259
603,664

6,144,478

The structure of the customers' deposits, which are mainly of short-term maturities, and similar to the
general structure within the Lebanese banking system, reflects a concentration in the distribution of
deposits among account holders.

17- ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE
This caption comprises the following:

Interest on deposits from customers and related parties
Interest on certificates of deposit
Interest on deposits from banks and financial institutions

2005
LBP'000

December 31,
2004
LBP'000

71,160,788

60,516,456

49,252,181
18,561,831
3,346,776

44,997,747
14,580,609
938,100
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18- CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
Certificates of deposit are composed of the following as at December 31, 2005 and 2004:

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

Global certificates of deposit
Discount on certificates of deposit issuance
Local certificates of deposit

1,085,400,000
(5,393,669)

3,467,250
1,083,473,581

572,850,000
(82,839)

87,270,750
660,037,911

Accrued interest payable on certificates of deposit, amounting to LBP 18.57 billion as at December 31,
2005 (LBP 14.58 billion as at December 31, 2004) is included under Accrued interest payable (Note 17).
A|

Global certificates of deposit:

During 1996, the Group set up a USD 500,000,000 Euro Deposit Program to be issued in series through
international financial institutions. Eleven series have been issued up to December 31, 2005, out of which
series No. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 were redeemed.
The Group also issued during 2005, 2004 and 2003, certificates of deposit with a nominal value of
USD 170,000,000, USD 150,000,000 and USD 100,000,000 under series No. 11, 10 and 9, respectively, as a
supplement to the above mentioned program. During 2005 and 2004, series No. 11 and 10 in the amount
of USD 170 million and USD 150 million, respectively, were issued. During 2005, series 6 and 8 in the amount
of USD 50 million and USD 80 million were redeemed at their maturity on March 11, and September 9, 2005,
respectively. Redemptions during the year 2004 in the amount of USD 150 million represented series 7.
During 2005, the Group augmented the above mentioned program by USD 500,000,000 to become
USD 1 billion to be issued in series through international financial institutions. In this respect, the Group
issued series No.12 in the amount of USD 300 million representing the first series of the above mentioned
program after its increase.
The outstanding series are summarized as follows:

Series 9

Series 10

Nominal amount of certificates USD 100,000,000
USD 150,000,000
Issue price
USD 100,000,000
USD 150,000,000
Issue date
October 6, 2003
August 6, 2004
Maturity
October 6, 2006
August 6, 2007
Fixed rate of interest
6.375%
6.25%
Interest payment date
April & October 6 August & February 6

B|

Series 11

USD 170,000,000
USD 168,218,400
July 19, 2005
July 19, 2010
7.695%
July 19 & January 19

Series 12

USD 300,000,000
USD 298,005,000
December 15, 2005
December 14, 2012
7.625%
December 15 & June 15

Local Certificates of deposit

During 2003 and 2002, the Group issued local certificates of deposit in Lebanese Pounds amounting to
LBP 31.8 billion with 18 months maturity period and paying average interest rate of 12% on a monthly basis.
The Group redeemed the final amount of LBP 2.7 billion, carrying an average interest rate of 9% in the
year 2005 (an amount of LBP 29.1 billion, carrying an average interest rate of 13.29%, from the above
issue upon its maturity dates in January, February, April and December 2004).
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In addition, during 2003 and 2002, the Group issued local certificates of deposit in Euro amounting to
EUR 5,550,000 with 18 months maturity period and paying average interest rate of 6.5% on a monthly
basis. The whole program was settled by the Group in 2004 upon its maturity.
Moreover, during 2002 and 2003, the Group issued local certificates of deposit in U.S. Dollars amounting
to USD 111,050,000 paying interest at the average rate of 6.25% per annum accrued a monthly basis. In
addition, the Group issued during year 2004, new certificates of deposit in the amount of LBP 31.66 billion
(USD 21,000,000) paying interest at a rate of 4.95% per annum accrued on a monthly basis.
The Group redeemed an amount of USD 53.8million carrying interest of 5.4% per annum after its maturity
during 2005 (USD 47,150,000 carrying interest rate of 6.44% per annum, from the above issues upon their
maturity during year 2004).
The remaining local certificates of deposit in the amount of LBP 3.47 billion as at December 31, 2005
(USD 2.3 million) mature in year 2006 and bear interest of 4.5% per annum.
The local certificates of deposit as at December 31, 2004 mature as follows:

Lebanese Interest Rate U.S. Dollars Interest Rate Nominal Average Rate
Pounds
Value
LBP'000
% C/V LBP'000
% LBP'000
%

1st quarter 2005 2,700,000
2nd quarter 2005
2nd half 2005
Year 2006
-

2,700,000

9.00
-

15,527,250
37,386,000
28,190,250
3,467,250

84,570,750

5.50 18,227,250
5.50 37,386,000
5.00 28,190,250
4.50 3,467,250

6.02
5.50
5.00
4.50

87,270,750

19- ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
This caption is composed of the following:

Margins on letters of credit
Margins on letters of guarantee
Blocked accounts for capital subscription
Notes payable - Note 15
Accrued income tax and other
Withheld and other taxes
Withheld tax on interest
Checks and payment orders
Sundry credit balances
Accrued expenses
Unearned revenue
Change in fair value of derivatives
Deferred liability on available-for-sale securities
Deferred liabilities on income from associates
Other liabilities

December 31,
2005 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000

6,372,879
11,943,135
8,395,771
2,367,851
5,117,534
1,203,170
3,038,259
3,920,813
34,853,028
5,576,927
1,801,726
48,189,723
293,767
3,730,950

136,805,533

7,840,639
26,361,605
10,192,738
4,800,373
7,700,993
775,368
2,446,154
8,487,825
12,656,693
8,428,278
736,730
12,262,189
12,643,121
102,798
4,284,403

119,719,907

The tax returns for the years 2002 to 2005 remain subject to examination and final tax assessment by the
tax authorities. Management does not expect any material additional tax liability as a result of the
expected tax review.
Sundry credit balances include transitory accounts against checks sent for clearing in the amount of
LBP 9.96 billion as at December 31, 2005, (LBP 5.14 billion, as at December 31, 2004), cleared and
recorded to the related accounts in the period subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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20- PROVISIONS FOR LOSSES AND CONTINGENCIES
This caption comprises the following:

Provision for employees' end-of-service indemnities
Provision for contingent liabilities
Provision for loss on foreign currency position

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

9,636,461
3,446,414
122,125

13,205,000

10,220,974
3,190,010
312,199

13,723,183

The movement of the provision for employees' end-of-service indemnities is as follows:

Balance -- Beginning of year
Additions
Settlements
Write-backs
Balance -- End of year

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP'000
LBP'000

10,220,974
545,275
(1,075,687)
(54,101)

9,636,461

8,697,973
2,090,027
(567,026)
-

10,220,974

21- CAPITAL
The capital of the Bank as at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 consists of 53,000,000 shares
of LBP 10,000 par value each, issued and fully paid.
The Bank has set up a special foreign currency position to the extent of USD 71.15 million as of December
31, 2005 as a hedge of capital within the limits authorized by local banking regulations.
During 2004, the Group distributed dividends in the amount of LBP 75 billion after being declared by the
General Assembly in its meeting on November 10, 2004. The Group paid the related withheld income tax
of LBP 7.5 bilion on November 30, 2004.
The Bank's consolidated risk based capital ratio as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to 26.7%
and 25.7% respectively, and is determined as follows:

Consolidated assets and off-balance sheet weighted risk
Tier I and Tier II capital (including income for the year)
Risk based capital ratio

December 31,
2005
2004
LBP millions LBP millions
3,062,946
818,693
26.7%

2,672,275
686,583
25.7%

Annual Report 2005 | 71

22- CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
This caption comprises the following:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
debt securities held by the Bank
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
equity securities held by the Bank
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities held by the Bank's Subsidiaries
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities held by other subsidiaries
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities held by associates

Changes
2004 in Fair Value
for the Year
LBP'000
LBP'000
1,964,750
64,037,199

December 31,
Deferred
Liability
LBP'000

2005
LBP'00

(214,487)

3,180,179

233,811,883 (35,071,782)

262,777,300

1,429,916

4,564,271

1,735,553

(260,333)

6,039,491

1,078,131

8,848,534

-

9,926,665

-

234,090

-

234,090

71,644,351 246,059,976 (35,546,602) 282,157,725

The change in the 2004 balance consists of the value of deferred liability on the change in value of
available for sale securities in addition to the transition of 2005 beginning balance which was made due
to the amendment made to IAS 39. The changes are comprised of the following:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
debt securities held by the bank
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
equity securities held by the bank
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities held by Bank Subsidiaries
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities held by other subsidiaries
Transitional Restatement - BANK
Transitional Restatement - Subsidiaries

December 31,
2004 Deferred Liability 2004 (Restated)
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'00
(1,552,736)

232,910

(1,319,826)

75,337,881

(11,300,682)

64,037,199

2,293,797

(344,070)

1,949,727

1,268,388

(190,257)

1,078,131

77,347,330

(11,602,099)

65,745,231

84,287,472

(12,643,121)

71,644,351

3,864,208
3,075,934

(579,632)
(461,390)

3,284,576
2,614,544

23- TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Interest income includes approximately LBP 17.67 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005
(LBP 21.38 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004) representing interest charged to related parties'
loan accounts.
Interest expense includes approximately LBP18.04 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005
(LBP10.68 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004) representing interest paid on related parties'
deposits.
General operating expenses include approximately LBP 14.17 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005
(LBP 13.44 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004) representing charges transacted with affiliated
companies for services rendered to the Group.
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Guarantees and standby letters of credit includes guarantees issued on behalf of related parties in favor
of third parties in the amount of LBP 19.4 billion as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 27.08 billion as at
December 31, 2004).
Guarantees and standby letters of credit includes guarantees issued to the benefit of related parties on
behalf of third parties in the amount of LBP 75.23 billion as at December 31, 2005 (LBP 88.98 billion as at
December 31, 2004).
The Group had contracted to sell the whole 2,400 shares of parts B28, B31, B33, B34 and B36 in Plot 5205
located in Achrafieh district for a total consideration of USD 1,628,000 to Allied Real Estate Co. SAL, which
is a company owned by the previous Chairman and General Manager of the Group.
On December 24, 2004, the Group signed a contract with Allenby 171 Real Estate Co. SAL, a company
owned by the previous Chairman and General Manager of the Group, whereby it renounced its right to
own 2,400 shares in part 6 of plot # 171 in Marfaa district for a total consideration of USD 3,400,000 paid
upon the registration of the plot in the name of the Company. In addition, it was agreed that the Group
renounces its leasing rights in the building erected on the plot mentioned above and evacuate the
leased property and deliver it to the Company against receiving USD 800,000 representing cost of
decorations incurred by the Group and USD 800,000 representing key money. Moreover, it was agreed
that the Company pays the total consideration due to the Group that resulted from the above
mentioned agreement in the amount of USD 5,000,000 plus interest at the rate of 5% per annum in annual
installments due on December 31 of each year starting December 31, 2005 and ending December 31,
2009, provided that the Company provides the Group with a first degree real estate mortgage on the
above mentioned plot.
In addition, the Group sold fixed assets in 2004 to related parties and generated gain in the amount of
LBP 2.13 billion reflected under Other income in the consolidated income statement.

24- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISKS
The guarantees and stand-by letters of credit and the documentary and commercial letters of credit
represent financial instruments with contractual amounts representing credit risks. The guarantees and
standby letters of credit represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the
event that customers cannot meet their obligations to third parties, and, therefore, are similar to loans
receivable on the balance sheet. However, documentary and commercial letters of credit which
represent written undertakings by the Group on behalf of customers authorizing third parties to draw
drafts on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by
the underlying shipments to which they relate and therefore, have significantly less risks.
Forward exchange contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2005 represent positions held for
customers' accounts and at their risk. The Group entered into such instruments to serve the needs of
customers, and these contracts are fully hedged by the Group. The forward exchange contracts
outstanding as at December 31, 2005 include a forward transaction for the purchase of USD 80.08 million
versus CHF 96.5 million (USD 77.4 million versus CHF 96.5 million as at December 31, 2004). This transaction
was effected to hedge an investment referred to in Note 14 above.
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25- FIDUCIARY ACCOUNTS
Fiduciary accounts consist of the following:

Fiduciary deposits invested in deposits with
non-resident banks
Fiduciary deposits invested in portfolio
securities (non-resident)
Fiduciary deposits invested in back-to-back lending

Fiduciary deposits invested in deposits with
non-resident banks
Fiduciary deposits invested in portfolio
securities (non-resident)
Fiduciary deposits invested in back-to-back lending
The above balances are segregated as follows:

Discretionary
Non-discretionary

Resident
LBP'000

452,870,626

452,870,626

December 31, 2005
Customers' Base Accounts
Resident Non-Resident
Total
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000
-

564,474,064

564,474,064

452,870,626

501,555,320
35,368,210

501,555,320
488,238,836

452,870,626

1,101,397,594 1,554,268,220

December 31, 2004
Customers' Base Accounts
Resident Non-Resident
Total
LBP'000
LBP'000
LBP'000
-

474,611,167

474,611,167

143,093,678

342,306,954
45,138,416

342,306,954
188,232,094

December 31, 2005
Non-Resident
Resident
LBP'000
LBP'000

2004
Non-Resident
LBP'000

143,093,678

5,603,397
1,095,794,197

1,101,397,594

862,056,537 1,005,150,215

143,093,678

143,093,678

5,785,867
856,270,669

862,056,536

26- CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The following investing and financing activities, which represent non-cash items were excluded from the
consolidated statement of cash flows as follows:
a - Increase in change fair value of available-for-sale securities and deferred liability in the amounts of
LBP 210.28 billion and LBP 35.55 billion, respectively, against securities for the year ended December 31,
2005 (LBP 59.39 billion and LBP 11.01 billion, respectively, against securities for the year ended December
31, 2004).
b - Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts in the amount of LBP 59.72 billion against loans and advances
to customers and investments in related companies in the amount of LBP 47 billion and
LBP 12.72 billion, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2005 (LBP 242.61 billion against loans
and advances to customers for the year ended December 31, 2004).
c - Minority interest share in unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities in the net amount of
LBP 2.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005 (LBP 456 million in 2004).
d - Increase in deferred liability on income from associates and increase in change in fair value on
available-for-sale securities in the amount of LBP 191 million and LBP 234 million, respectively, against
securities for the year ended December 31, 2005.
e - Accrued interest on long-term loan to Light Metal Products in the amount of LBP 726 million that
became part of the principal amount of the loan against investment securities in year 2004.
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27- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
A| Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently differences can arise
between carrying values and fair value estimates.
The on-balance sheet financial instruments are reflected according to their classifications, in
accordance with IAS 39. The held-for-trading and available-for-sale securities are reflected at their fair
value. The investments held-to-maturity and loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost and
adjusted for non-temporary decline in value and/or impairment loss. The fair value of these instruments
is disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.

B| Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter-parties, and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counter-parties.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
The Group manages its credit risk exposure by diversification of lending activities to ensure that there is
no undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific business segments
and/or locations. It also takes security as deemed appropriate.
The risk of the debt instruments included in the investment portfolio relates mainly to sovereign risk. For
details of the composition of the loans and advances refer to Note 7.

C| Market Risk
Market risk includes, among other things, currency risk and interest rate risk:

- Currency Risk

The Group carries an exchange risk associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing foreign
currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Group takes preventive
measures against this risk by setting up limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for both
overnight and intra-day positions in line with the limits authorized by the Lebanese regulatory authorities.
Furthermore, the Group hedges its capital against currency fluctuation by maintaining a fixed position
in foreign currency and hedging of investments, in line with the regulatory authorized limits.
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The following table is a distribution of assets and liabilities between Lebanese Pounds and other major
currencies as at December 31, 2005:

ASSETS

LBP
LBP'000

USD
C.V in LBP
LBP'000

Non-interest earning compulsory
reserves and obligatory placements
181,980,932
Cash and due from banks
17,195,357
75,770,092
Interest earning deposits with banks
7,500,000 1,346,130,634
Securities
1,170,405,603 2,767,611,244
Loans and advances to customers
32,891,140 1,454,989,796
Loans and advances to related parties
91,264,493
72,715,570
Customers' acceptance liability
34,298,471
Accrued interest and other receivables
and other assets
84,251,209
85,739,723
Investment securities
8,232,086
75,436,359
Investment properties
5,024,625
Regulatory blocked fund
1,507,500
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
(526,238) 310,326,384
Goodwill
23,068,897
Premises and equipment
176,680,389
4,779,969

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Other
Currencies
C.V in LBP
LBP'000

Total
LBP'000

- 181,980,932
23,243,533 116,208,982
143,129,794 1,496,760,428
272,397,688 4,210,414,535
247,722,001 1,735,602,937
73,103,993 237,084,056
18,853,549
53,152,020
5,762,537
1,492,507
29,753,711
513,891

175,753,469
83,668,445
5,024,625
1,507,500
311,292,653
52,822,608
181,974,249

1,794,451,368 6,232,822,867

815,973,204 8,843,247,439

Due to banks and financial institutions
(81,462,169) (160,505,038)
Acceptances payable
- (34,298,473)
Customers' deposits and credit balances (1,184,538,358) (4,308,534,181)
Deposits from related parties
(11,192,947) (412,011,358)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities
(35,915,371) (161,795,302)
Certificates of deposit
- (1,083,473,581)
Provisions for losses and contingencies
(9,766,017)
(2,921,725)

(91,556,894) (333,524,101)
(18,853,547) (53,152,020)
(226,690,410) (5,719,762,949)
(1,511,134) (424,715,439)

Total Liabilities

Forward contracts bought
Forward contracts sold
Net Premium
Net Currency options
Derivatives net
Net exchange position

(10,255,648) (207,966,321)
- (1,083,473,581)
(517,258) (13,205,000)

(1,322,874,862) (6,163,539,658) (349,384,891) (7,835,799,411)

6,462,900 398,824,438 139,144,946 544,432,284
(2,179,375) (121,764,828) (410,699,769) (534,643,972)
(2,988,151)
(79,430)
(3,067,581)
(184,689)
(184,689)

4,283,525
475,860,031

274,071,459 (271,818,942)
6,536,042
343,354,668 194,769,371 1,013,984,070

- Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to several risks associated with the effect of fluctuations of interest rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches
in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period. The Group manages
these risks by monitoring the effect of interest rates fluctuations on interest bearing assets and liabilities
accounts according to their maturities and interest structure.
The structure of financial statements denominated in Lebanese Pounds and foreign currencies
through out the banking industry shows a mismatch between short term maturities bearing floating
interest rates against medium and long term investments bearing fixed interest rates.
The off-balance sheet accounts are not exposed to interest rate risk.
The following table is a distribution of assets and liabilities in Lebanese Pounds and foreign currencies
as at December 31, 2005 by maturity and interest structure.

110,565,107
-

10,267,226
88,534,734
8,232,086
1,507,500
(526,238)
176,680,389
23,068,897

457,876,009 (1,151,125,523)

Net Balances in LBP vulnerable
to interest rates fluctuations

(58,657,824) (1,261,690,630)
3,320,000

-

-

(35,915,371)
(9,766,017)

Total Liabilities

-

(12,938,567) (1,180,266,330)
-

-

3,320,000

3,320,000
-

-

LBP'000

(81,424,300)
-

(37,869)
-

516,533,833 110,565,107

-

LBP'000

181,980,932
17,195,357
9,592,950

LBP'000

1-3 Years

Due to banks and financial institutions
Acceptances payable
Customers' and related parties'deposits
and credit balances
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities
Certificates of deposit
Provisions for losses and contingencies

Total Assets
Liabilities

Non-interest earning compulsory
reserves and obligatory placements
Cash and due from banks
Interest earning deposits with banks
Securities
Loans and advances to customers
and related parties
Customers' acceptance liability
Accrued interest and other assets
Investment securities
Investment properties
Regulatory blocked funds
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
Premises and equipment
Goodwill

Assets

Non-Interest Up to
Earning One Year

Floating Interest Rate

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

LBP'000

(81,424,300)
-

-

-

-

-

3,300
-

514,423,294

LBP'000

Up to
One Year

(2,526,408)

-

(2,526,408)

-

-

633,311,657

LBP'000

1-3 Years

- (1,147,805,523) 514,426,594 630,785,249

-

- (1,261,690,630)

-

-(1,180,266,330)

-

113,885,107
-

-

LBP'000

Total

- 113,885,107 514,426,594 633,311,657

-

-

LBP'000

3-5 Years Over 5 Years

13,077,702

-

-

-

-

13,077,702

-

13,077,702

LBP'000

LBP'000

Total

LBP'000

GRAND
TOTAL

(2,526,408) (1,322,874,862)

- (35,915,371)
- (9,766,017)

(2,526,408) (1,195,731,305)

- (81,462,169)
-

124,155,633
88,534,734
8,232,086
1,507,500
(526,238)
176,680,389
23,068,897

7,500,000 1,165,789,545 475,860,031

-

-

-

-

3,300
-

7,500,000 1,168,315,953 1,798,734,893

-

- 181,980,932
- 17,195,357
7,500,000
7,500,000
7,500,000
- 1,160,812,653 1,170,405,603

LBP'000

3-5 Years Over 5 Years

Fixed Interest Rate

Interest Sensitivity Analysis for Accounts in Lebanese Pounds as at December 31, 2005
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-

-

Net Balances in F/Cy vulnerable to
interest rates fluctuations

Total Liabilities

-

922,675,012 (1,951,614,574) 108,931,750

(266,666,115) (4,554,914,863)

33,913,799

-

33,913,799
-

1,189,341,127 2,603,300,289 108,931,750
-

Total Assets
Liabilities

-

Due to banks and financial institutions
(100,786) (251,961,146)
(53,152,020)
Acceptances payable
Customers' and related parties'
deposits and credit balances
(43,317,045) (4,302,953,717)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities
(172,050,950)
Certificates of deposit
5,393,669
Provisions for losses and contingencies
(3,438,983)
-

27,888,750
6,025,049

LBP'000

29,185,000
-

LBP'000

58,660,709 1,390,229,243
53,152,020
93,754,777
75,436,359
5,024,625
311,818,891
5,293,860
29,753,711
-

LBP'000

LBP'000

Total

-

LBP'000

LBP'000

GRAND
TOTAL

-

-

- (252,061,932)
- (53,152,020)

370,456,408 1,848,531,360
- 53,152,020
- 93,754,777
- 75,436,359
5,024,625
- 311,818,891
5,293,860
- 29,753,711

- (602,476,321) (4,948,747,083)

-

8,979,022
-

- 99,013,625
- 191,746,189 1,489,260,428
358,265,040 2,553,359,026 3,040,008,932

LBP'000

Total

527,035,591 367,244,062 3,115,561,623 7,051,048,588

4,357,196
-

36,933,750
485,744,645

LBP'000

3-5 Years Over 5 Years

- (1,808,769,025) 741,887,441 496,575,958

270,760,591 (85,005,938) 1,424,218,052 538,124,039

- (172,050,950)
- (150,750,000) (229,592,250) (256,275,000) (452,250,000) (1,088,867,250) (1,083,473,581)
- (3,438,983)

- (602,476,321)

-

347,866,756
-

141,566,685
839,211,088

LBP'000

1-3 Years

- (4,554,914,863) (150,750,000) (832,068,571) (256,275,000) (452,250,000) (1,691,343,571) (6,512,924,549)

-

- (4,302,953,717)

- (251,961,146)
-

9,253,434
-

13,245,754
870,138,253

LBP'000

Up to
One Year

Fixed Interest Rate

- 2,746,145,838 892,637,441 1,328,644,529

- 1,419,414,243
-

17,329,768
- 1,297,514,239
11,887,588

LBP'000

3-5 Years Over 5 Years

79,746,750
-

LBP'000

1-3 Years

81,683,857
17,329,768
- 1,189,878,739
474,762,318
5,862,539

Non-interest earning compulsory
reserves and obligatory placements
Cash and due from banks
Interest earning deposits with banks
Securities
Loans and advances to customers
and related parties
Customers' acceptance liability
Accrued interest and other assets
Investment securities
Investment Properties
Regulatory blocked funds
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
Premises and equipment
Goodwill

Assets

Non-Interest Up to
Earning One Year

Floating Interest Rate

Interest Sensitivity Analysis for Accounts in Foreign currencies as at December 31, 2005
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- Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk
can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of
funding to dry up immediately. To mitigate this risk, management has diversified funding sources and
assets are managed adopting a liquidity approach, maintaining high levels of cash, cash equivalents,
and readily marketable securities.
Management monitors the maturity profile of its financial assets and liabilities to ensure that adequate
liquidity is maintained.

28- COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Certain 2004 comparative figures were reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

29- APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors has approved the consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its Subsidiaries
for the year ended December 31, 2005 in its meeting held on April 5, 2006.
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BANKMED SAL
o HEAD OFFICE

o

AIRPORT BRANCH

MEA premises
Tel & Fax: 01-629360/1/2 | 03-760026

BankMed Center | 482, Clemenceau Str.
Tel: 01-373937 | Fax: 01-362706 | 01-362806
Cable: COMBANK | Swift: MEDL LB BX | Reuters: MEDB
P.O. Box: 11-348 Riad El Solh | Beirut 1107 2030 |
Lebanon |Website: www.bankmed.com.lb

o

CHIYAH BRANCH

o

CLEMENCEAU BRANCH

Hadi Nasrallah Blvd. | Ismail Bldg. | Chiyah
Tel & Fax: 01-551999 | 01-552999 | 01-554999
| 03-500775
o

ASHRAFIEH BRANCH

o

PHOENICIA BRANCH

o

TABARIS BRANCH

o

HAMRA BRANCH

o

HAZMIEH BRANCH

BankMed Center | 482, Clemenceau Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-373937

Phoenix Tower | Ain El Mreisseh
Tel & Fax: 01-369069/70
Al Nahar Bldg. | Banque du Liban Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-344677 | 01-353146/7/8 | 03-760007
o

MAKDESSI BRANCH

Hadife Bldg. | Charles Malek Ave.
Tel & Fax: 01-200135/6/7/8/40 | 03-760001

Charles Malek Ave | St. Nicolas | Achrafieh
Tel & Fax: 01-326757/9 | 01-323116/9 | 01-200660
| 03-479356
Tufenkjian Center | Brazilia Str.
Tel & Fax: 05-450186/7 | 05-450182 | 03- 652402

Diab Bldg. | Makdessi Str. | Ras Beirut
Tel & Fax: 01-346934 | 01-344395 | 01-348167,
03-288357

o

MKALLES BRANCH

o

KORAYTEM BRANCH

Al Shams Bldg. | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 01-684051/2 | 03-760008
o

BROUMANA BRANCH

o

RAOUCHÉ BRANCH

o

BURJ HAMMOUD BRANCH

o

MÖVENPICK BRANCH

o

JDEIDEH BRANCH

o

Al Shuaa Bldg. | Rashid Karame Ave.
Tel & fax: 01-866925/6/7 | 03-760063

VERDUN BRANCH

o

ZALKA BRANCH

o

AIN EL TINEH BRANCH

Breezvale Center | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 01-884570/1/2 | 03-760021
o

FURN EL CHEBBAK

o

MAZRAA BRANCH

o

SODECO BRANCH

o

BARBIR BRANCH

o

DORA BRANCH

o

MSAITBE BRANCH

o

Abi Chaker Bldg. | Zouk
Tel & Fax: 09-211116 | 09-211124 | 03-760003

ZOUK MKAYEL BRANCH

o

SUMMERLAND BRANCH

o

Dibs Center | Kaslik | Jounieh
Tel & Fax: 09-639472/4 | 09-831599 | 03-241898

KASLIK BRANCH

o

TARIK JDIDEH BRANCH

o

JBEIL BRANCH

Reda Mroueh Bldg. | Mme Curie Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-780780 | 01-803160/1/2 | 03-760064
Salah Shamma Bldg. | Shouran Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-862696 | 01-808610/1 | 03-760002
Movenpick Hotel
Tel & Fax: 01-799880/1

Najjar Bldg. | Rashid Karame Ave.
Tel & Fax: 01-862482 | 01-866651 | 01-866652 | 03099144
Etoile 2000 Center | Corniche El Mazraa
Tel & Fax: 01-818166/7/8 | 03-760017
Flama Bldg. | Corniche El Mazraa,
Tel & Fax: 01-651855/6 | 03-099133

Al Hana Bldg. | Mar Elias Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-819202/3 | 01-314655 | 03-760011
Coral Bldg. | Jnah
Tel & Fax: 01-853444/6 | 03-760020
Malaab El Baladi Square
Tel & fax: 01-303444 | 01-304861/3 | 03-035251

Rizk Plaza
Tel & Fax: 04-860995/6/7/8/9 | 03-760023
Gold & Jewelry Trade Center
Tel & Fax: 01-244000, 01-242608/9 | 03-760065
Zainoun & Saad Bldg. | Nahr El Maout
Tel & Fax: 01-892055/9 | 01-891566 | 03-760006

Atallah Freij Bldg. | Damascus Road
Tel & Fax: 01-291618/9/21 | 01-292076 | 03-760009
Sodeco Square
Tel & Fax: 01-611444 | 01-611070/1
Dora Highway
Tel & Fax: 01-257958/60/61 | 03-095098

Cordahi & Matta Center | Jbeil
Tel & Fax: 09-540195 | 03-760014

CORPORATE DIRECTORY

o

CHEKKA BRANCH

o

AMYOUN BRANCH

o

TRIPOLI BRANCH

o

SAIDA BRANCH

Rua Iguatemi 192 | 5 andar | CJ 51
Sao Paulo | Brazil
Tel: +55-11 31682245

o

TYR BRANCH

SAUDI LEBANESE BANK SAL
o HEAD OFFICE

Mikhael Karam Bldg. | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 06-545121 | 06-545081 | 03-760010
Shammas Bldg. | Cedars Str.
Tel. & Fax: 06-950988 | 06-950957 | 03-099122

Al Hana Bldg. | Jemmayzat Str.
Tel & Fax: 06-440443/7 | 03-760013
Riad Chehab Bldg. | Riad Solh Str.
Tel & Fax: 07-721788 | 07-723381 | 07-735119/21 |
03-760012

Dunia Center | Seashore Road
Tel & Fax: 07- 740023 | 07-343317/8 | 07-740023 |
03-332243

BANKMED (SUISSE) SA
o HEAD OFFICE

3, Rue du Mont-Blanc | casa postale 1523
1211 | Geneva 1 | Switzerland
Tel: +41-22 9060606
o

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE - BEIRUT

o

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE - BRAZIL

Al-Shua'a Bldg. | Bashir Al-Kassar Str. | 3rd floor
Verdun | Beirut | Lebanon

o

Salem Center | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 05-800703/4/5/6 | 03-760004

KHALDÉ BRANCH

o

CHTAURA BRANCH

Al-Shua'a Bldg. |Bashir Al-Kassar Str. | Verdun
Tel: 01- 868987 | Fax: 01- 790250
Cable: SAULBANK | Swift: SLBL LB BX
P.O.Box: 11-6765 Riad El Solh | Beirut 1107 2220
Lebanon
o

VERDUN BRANCH

o

ZAHLÉ BRANCH

o

JUSTINIEN BRANCH

o

JIB JINNINE BRANCH

o

ISTIKLAL BRANCH

o

ADMIC (BHV) BRANCH

o

FOCH BRANCH

o

LIMASSOL (IBU)

o

MAZRAA BRANCH

o

TRIPOLI BRANCH

o

SAIDA BRANCH

Bachoura Bldg. | Horch Tabet
Tel & Fax.: 01- 511206 | 01-511209

Al Misbah Bldg. | Jizzine Str.
Tel. & Fax: 07-725212 | 07-724892 | 07-728744 | 03094868

o

o

SHEHIM BRANCH

Al Jinan Bldg. | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 08-542491 | 08-542670 | 03-760019
Rachid Salim Khoury Bldg. | Hoshe Zaraina Blvd.
Tel & Fax: 08-802487 | 08-805777 | 03-760015

Al Hana Bldg. | West Bekaa
Tel & Fax: 08-661503/4/5/6 | 03-760025
Adnan Al Hakim Ave. | Jnah
Tel: 01-858590 | 03 -474747

9 Constantinou Paparigopoulou Str. | Frema House
| CY-3106 Limassol | Cyprus.
P.O.Box 54232, CY- 3722 Limassol | Cyprus.
Tel: +357 25817152/3 | 25817157/8 | 25817178/9
Fax: +357 25372711 | e-mail: abbcy@cylink.com.cy

TEMPORARILY CLOSED BRANCHES:
o SIN EL FIL BRANCH
JAL EL DIB BRANCH

Moukarzel Bldg,Tripoli Highway
Tel: 04-404060 | 04-402512 | Fax: 04-404061

Al-Shua'a Bldg. | Bashir Al-Kassar Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-810199 | 03-094566
Justinien Center | Justinien Str. | Sanayeh
Tel & Fax: 01- 354866 | 01-354474 | 03-094718
Tabsh Center | Istiklal Str.
Tel. & Fax: 01-737576/7 | 01- 743420 | 03-094724
Saudi Lebanese Bank Bldg | Fosh Street | Central
District
Tel. & Fax: 01- 976444 | 03-922296
Koussa Center | Corniche El Mazraa
Tel. & Fax: 01- 653120/1 | 01-645115/6 | 03-094805
Sara Center | Al - Maarad Str.
Tel. & Fax: 06-629169 | 06-629435 | 03-094875

Noureddine Mrad Bldg. | Main Road | Shreifeh Area
Tel. & Fax: 07-241005/6/7 | 03-094873
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List
of Correspondents
Correspondent
Banks
COUNTRY
COUNTRY

CITY
CITY

CORRESPONDENT
NAME
OF BANKS BANKS

AUSTRALIA
AUSTRALIA
AUSTRIA
AUSTRIA
BELGIUM
BELGIUM

Sydney
Sydney
Vienna
Vienna
Brussels
Brussels
Brussels
Brussels
Sofia
Sofia
Toronto
Toronto
Toronto
Toronto
Beijing
Beijing
Nicosia
Nicosia
Nicosia
Nicosia
Copenhagen
Copenhagen
Cairo
Paris
Paris
Paris
Paris
Paris
Paris
Frankfurt
Frankfurt
Frankfurt
Frankfurt
Frankfurt
Frankfurt
Athens
Athens
Dublin
Dublin
Milan
Milan
Rome
Rome
Rome
Rome
Tokyo
Tokyo
Tokyo
Tokyo
Amman
Amman
Amman
Amman
Jeddah
Jeddah
Jeddah
Jeddah
Riyadh
Riyadh
Kuwait
Kuwait
Kuwait
Kuwait
Amsterdam
Amsterdam
Oslo
Oslo
Doha
Doha
Bucharest
Bucharest
Madrid
Madrid
Madrid
Madrid
Colombo
Colombo
Colombo
Colombo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Geneva
Geneva
Zurich
Zurich
Zurich
Zurich
Dubai
Dubai
London
London
London
London
London
London
New
York
New
York
New York
New
York
New York
NewYork
York
New
NewYork
York
New
NewYork
York
New
NewYork
York
New
New York

ArabBank
BankAustralia
AustraliaLtdLtd.
Arab
Bank
Austria
CreditanstaltAGAG
Bank Austria Creditanstalt
Fortis
Bank
NV/SA
Fortis Bank NV/SA
INGBank
BankNVNV/SA
ING
SA
BULBANKADAD
BULBANK
CanadianImperial
ImperialBank
BankofofCommerce
Commerce
Canadian
RoyalBank
BankofofCanada
Canada
Royal
BankofofChina
ChinaLimited
Limited
Bank
BankofofCyprus
CyprusPublic
PublicCompany
CompanyLimited
Limited
Bank
The
Cyprus
Popular
Bank
Public
Company,
Ltd.
The Cyprus Popular Bank Public Company, Ltd.
Danske
Bank
A/S
Danske Bank A/S
National
Bank of Egypt
Banque
Banorabe
SA
Banque
Banorabe
SA
BNP
Paribas
SA
BNP Paribas
SA Populaires
Natexis
Banques
Natexis Banques
Commerzbank
AG Populaires
Commerzbank
AG
Deutsche
Bank AG
Deutsche
Bank
Dresdner
Bank
AGAG
Dresdner
Bank
National
Bank
of AG
Greece SA
National
Bank
Bank of Ireland of Greece SA
Bank Intesa
of Ireland
Banca
SPA
BancaNazionale
Intesa SPA
Banca
del Lavoro
Banca
Nazionale
del Lavoro
UBAE
Arab
Italian Bank
SpA
UBAE Arab
ItalianBank
BankNASpA
JPMorgan
Chase
JPMorgan
Chase Bank NA UFJ, Ltd
The
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
The Bank
Bank Plc
of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd
Arab
Arab
Bank Bank
Plc for Foreign Trade & Finance
The
Housing
The
Housing
Banque Saudi Bank
Fransifor Foreign Trade & Finance
BanqueCommercial
Saudi Fransi Bank
National
National
Riyad
BankCommercial Bank
Riyadh
Gulf
BankBank
K.S.C.
Gulf Bank
National
Bank of Kuwait SAK
National
ABN
Amro Bank of
N.V.Kuwait
ABNNOR
Amro
Bank
N.V.
DnB
BANK
ASA
DnB
NOR
BANK
ASA
Qatar National Bank SAQ
QatarCommerciala
National BankRomana SA
Banca
BancadeCommerciala
Banco
Sabadell SA Romana SA
BancoPopulare
de Sabadell
SA SA
Banco
Espanol
Banco Bank
Populare Español SA
Peoples
Peoples
Union
BankBank
Ltd.
Union Bank Ltd.
Skandinaviska
Enskilda Banken A/S
Skandinaviska
Enskilda Banken
A/S
Svenska
Handelsbanken
SA
Svenska
Handelsbanken
SA
BankMed (Suisse) SA
BankMed
Credit
Suisse(Suisse) SA
Crédit
UBS
AG Suisse
UBS AG
MashreqBank
PSC
Mashreq
HSBC
Bank Bank
plc PSC
HSBC Bank
plc Bank NA
JPMorgan
Chase
JPMorganBank
Chase
Wachovia
NA Bank NA
Wachovia
Bank Bank
NA
American
Express
American
Express
Bank of New York Bank
Bank ofN.A.
New York
Citibank
Citibank
HSBC
BankNA
USA
Bank,
USA Bank N.A.
JPHSBC
Morgan
Chase
JP Morgan
Bank,New
NA York
National
BankChase
of Kuwait
National Bank N.A.
of Kuwait,
NewBranch
York Branch
Wachovia
New York
Wachovia Bank NA, New York Branch

BULGARIA
BULGARIA
CANADA
CANADA
CHINA
CHINA
CYPRUS
CYPRUS
DENMARK
DENMARK
EGYPT
FRANCE
FRANCE
GERMANY
GERMANY
GREECE
GREECE
IRELAND
IRELAND
ITALY
ITALY
JAPAN
JAPAN
JORDAN
JORDAN
SAUDI ARABIA
SAUDI ARABIA
KUWAIT
KUWAIT
NETHERLANDS
NETHERLANDS
NORWAY
NORWAY
QATAR
QATAR
ROMANIA
ROMANIA
SPAIN
SPAIN
SRI LANKA
SRI LANKA
SWEDEN
SWEDEN
SWITZERLAND
SWITZERLAND
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
UNITEDKINGDOM
ARAB EMIRATES
UNITED
UNITED KINGDOM
UNITED STATES
UNITED STATES

